Public Document Pack

Penalita House, Ty Penallta, ‘

Tredomen Park, Parc Tredomen,

Ystrad Mynach, ¥strad Mymach, c A E R PH’ '. LY

Hengoed CF82 7PG Hengoed CF82 7PG EVNOOR BWRDEISTREE SINGL
ng RFFILy

www.caerphilly.gov.uk
www.caerffili.gov.uk

For all enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Rebecca Barrett
(Tel: 01443 864245 Email: barrerm@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Date: 29th August 2018

Dear Sir/Madam,

A meeting of the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee will be held in the Sirhowy Room,
Penallta House, Tredomen, Ystrad Mynach on Thursday, 6th September, 2018 at 5.30 pm to
consider the matters contained in the following agenda. Councillors and the public wishing to speak on
any item can do so by making a request to the Chair. You are also welcome to use Welsh at the meeting,
both these requests require a minimum notice period of 3 working days, and a simultaneous translation
will be provided if requested.

All Committee meetings are open to the Press and Public, observers and participants are asked to
conduct themselves with respect and consideration for others. Please note that failure to do so will result
in you being asked to leave the meetings and you may be escorted from the premises.

Yours faithfully,

Christina Harrhy
INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE

AGENDA
Pages
1 To receive apologies for absence.
2 Declarations of Interest.

Councillors and Officers are reminded of their responsibility to declare any personal and/or
prejudicial interest(s) in respect of any business on this agenda in accordance with the Local
Government Act 2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Code of Conduct for both Councillors
and Officers.

A greener place Man gwyrddach

- - l
"I = !
--

- —

1 (VL)

g AT = og®




To approve and sign the following minutes: -

3 Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee held on 29th May 2018.

1-8
4 Consideration of any matter referred to this Committee in accordance with the call-in procedure.
5 To receive a verbal report by the Cabinet Member(s).
6 Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme.
9-24
7 To receive and consider the following Cabinet Reports*: -

1. Flat Accommodation at River Road, Pontlottyn and The Grove, Fochriw - 30th May 2018;
2. Welsh Language Standards Annual Report 2017-2018 and the Annual Progress Report
on the Welsh Language Strategy 2017-2022 - 13th June 2018;

3. Cabinet Forward Work Programme - 27th June 2018;

4. Corporate Risk Register Monitoring (Q1 - 2018/19) — 11th July 2018;

5. Revised National Home Improvement Loan Schemes and associated amendments to
Private Sector Housing Renewal Policy — 25th July 2018;

6. Proposed allocation of Funding for Apprenticeships across Council Services — 25th July
2018;

7. Draft Caerphilly Homes Asset Management Strategy — 25th July 2018.

*If a member of the Scrutiny Committee wishes for any of the above Cabinet reports to be brought
forward for review at the meeting please contact Rebecca Barrett, 01443 864245, by 10.00 a.m. on
Wednesday, 5th September 2018.

To receive and consider the following Scrutiny reports:-

8 Remodelling and Reclassification of Older Persons Accommodation.

25 - 46
9 Proposals For Increasing Council Housing Supply.

47 - 66
10 Caerphilly Homes Asset Management Strategy.

67 - 86
11 Electric Vehicle Strategy and Action Plan.

87 -110

Circulation:

Councillors M.A. Adams, Mrs E.M. Aldworth, K. Dawson, K. Etheridge, Mrs C. Forehead,

Miss E. Forehead, L. Harding, G. Kirby (Vice Chair), C.P. Mann, Mrs D. Price, J. Pritchard (Chair),
J. Ridgewell, R. Saralis, Mrs M.E. Sargent, J. Taylor and L.G. Whittle

And Appropriate Officers

HOW WE WILL USE YOUR INFORMATION

Those individuals that attend committee meetings to speak/give evidence will be named in the minutes of that meeting,
sometimes this will include their place of employment or business and opinions expressed. Minutes of Meetings including details
of speakers will be publicly available to all via the Council website at www.caerphilly.gov.uk. except for discussions involving
confidential or exempt items.



You have a number of rights in relation to your information, including the rights of access to information we hold about you and
the right of complaint if you are unhappy with the way your information is being processed.

For further information on how we process your information and your rights please view the Full Committee Meetings Privacy
Notice on our website http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Committee/Privacy or contact Legal Services by email
griffd2@caerphilly.gov.uk or telephone 01443 863028.



http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Committee/Privacy
mailto:griffd2@caerphilly.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

A Y
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCILE
CYNGOR BGWRDEISTREF SIRODL

ERFFILY
4

POLICY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE, YSTRAD MYNACH ON
TUESDAY, 29TH MAY 2018 AT 5.30 P.M.

PRESENT:
Councillor J. Pritchard — Chair
Councillor G. Kirby — Vice-Chair
Councillors:

M. Adams, Mrs E.M. Aldworth, K. Etheridge, Mrs C. Forehead, Miss E. Forehead, L.
Harding, C.P. Mann, Mrs D. Price, J. Ridgewell, Mrs M.E. Sargent, J. Taylor, L.G. Whittle

Cabinet Members:

C. Gordon (Corporate Services), Mrs B. Jones (Finance, Performance and Governance) and
Mrs L. Phipps (Homes and Places)

Together with:
S. Couzens (Chief Housing Officer), S. Cousins (Principal Housing Officer - Housing
Portfolio) L. Lane (Interim Monitoring Officer), C. Evans (Interim Scrutiny Officer), R. Barrett
(Committee Services Officer)

Also present:
A. Clarke and S. Dwyer (Cornerstone Support Services Limited), J. Bibbings and N. Davies
(Shelter Cymru)

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors K. Dawson and R. Saralis.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor Miss E. Forehead declared a personal and prejudicial interest in Agenda ltem 8

(Homelessness Strategy and Action Plan 2018). Details are minuted with the respective
item.

3. MINUTES - 10TH APRIL 2018

Subject to the correction of a typing error within Report of the Cabinet Members (minute no.
5, paragraph 3, line 5) to read “complete” as opposed to “compete” it was

Page 1



RESOLVED that the minutes of the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee held
on 10th April 2018 (minute nos. 1 - 11) be approved as a correct record and signed
by the Chair.

CALL-IN PROCEDURE

There had been no matters referred to the Scrutiny Committee in accordance with the call-in
procedure.

REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBERS

The Scrutiny Committee noted the contents of the reports from Councillors C. Gordon, Mrs
B. Jones and Mrs L. Phipps, which provided an update on their respective portfolios, and
had been circulated to Members in advance of the meeting.

Councillor C. Gordon (Cabinet Member for Corporate Services) updated Members on
activities across Procurement Services, including the implementation of the new five year
programme for procurement. The Council has also signed up to Welsh Government’s Code
of Practice for Ethical Employment in Supply Chains, which includes twelve commitments to
eliminate modern slavery and support ethical employment practices. Across People
Services, a series of staff engagement roadshows were recently held as part of the Council’s
ongoing drive to improve internal communication and staff. Work is also progressing on the
Council’'s new staff intranet site, which is due to launch at the end of June.

Clarification was sought on how the five year programme for procurement will link in with the
National Procurement Strategy and the Cabinet Member confirmed he would relay the query
to the relevant Officer. Discussion took place regarding the twelve commitments within the
new Code of Practice and a Member queried whether this enforces the payment of minimum
wage or living wage from contractors to their staff. Officers confirmed that although the
Code has no legal bearing on this, the Council works in partnership with its contractors and
suppliers to encourage the payment of the living wage.

The report from Councillor Mrs B Jones (Cabinet Member for Finance, Performance and
Governance) referred to the Corporate Finance service area and outlined the work being
undertaken on preparing the draft Financial Statements for 2017/18. These will then be
subject to a detailed audit and the findings will be presented to the Audit Committee on 24th
July 2018, prior to presentation of the Financial Statements to Council on 31st July 2018.

Members were also reminded of the requirement to make anticipated savings of circa £34m
for the four year period 2019/20 to 2022/23, with particular emphasis on the 2019/20
financial year, where it is currently anticipated that savings of up to £10.5m will be required.
This will be a challenging year for the Authority, and it is inevitable that some very difficult
decisions will need to be made in order to achieve these savings. In looking to develop
proposals to address the financial challenges going forward, there is a need to examine the
way in which resources are used to deliver the services required by communities across the
county borough. Members will be kept updated as matters progress and savings proposals
will be subject to extensive consultation prior to final decisions being made.

In response to Members’ queries, it was confirmed that extensive consultation and
discussion would take place before any decisions are made to remove services, and the
Cabinet Member emphasised that the Council has to examine how to provide its statutory
services in a more strategic way. Members were asked to note that the Council would do
everything possible to avoid compulsory redundancies and that proper consultation would be
undertaken with the trade unions.

Page 2



The report from Councillor L. Phipps (Cabinet Member for Homes and Places) outlined the
latest developments across Caerphilly Homes, including a further review by the Wales Audit
Officer of the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) programme. The review is likely to
continue through May and June with the outcome report anticipated in the autumn.
Members were also advised that the full rollout of Universal Credit across the county
borough has been delayed by the Department for Work and Pensions until September
2018. To assist and support council tenants, additional resources will be reviewed, and
greater joint working between Caerphilly Homes, Housing Associations, DWP and Job
Centres is being established as well as training for front line staff.

Discussion took place regarding the payment of Universal Credit and the Cabinet Member
outlined the support available to those who may find themselves in housing arrears.
Members expressed the need to have sufficient support in place for tenants during the
settling in period. In response to a query on the number of tenants who will be in receipt of
Universal Credit, the Cabinet Member confirmed that she would make enquiries with the
relevant staff.

A Member referred to the Cross-Party Working Group which was established by the Scrutiny
Committee following the outcome of the last WAO review and proposed that the draft
findings of the latest review be taken back to the Group for review. Officers made reference
to the short timescales in place but confirmed that they would raise this proposal with
relevant Officers and the WAO. Members were also reminded that since the last review, the
WHQS programme is meeting its targets in readiness for December 2020 completion and
that regular progress updates are reported to the Scrutiny Committee.

The Cabinet Members were thanked for their reports.

POLICY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

Charlotte Evans (Interim Scrutiny Officer) presented the report, which outlined details of the
Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme (FWP) for the period
May 2018 to July 2018. Members were asked to consider the FWP alongside the Cabinet
Work Programme as appended to the report and to suggest any changes.

The Scrutiny Committee were advised of a forthcoming report on the Annual Information
Governance Update and it was agreed that this be included on the Forward Work
Programme as an information item for 10th July 2018.

Members were reminded that a workshop to consider and agree the Committee’s forward
work programme for the year ahead has been arranged for 7th June 2018 and were
encouraged to make every effort to attend. It was noted that there would be an opportunity
to discuss the inclusion of expert witnesses on the FWP during this workshop

It was unanimously agreed that subject to the foregoing addition, the Policy and Resources
Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme be published on the Council’s website.

CABINET REPORTS

None of the Cabinet reports listed on the agenda had been called forward for discussion at
the meeting.

Page 3



REPORTS OF OFFICERS

Consideration was given to the following reports.

HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY AND ACTION PLAN 2018

Councillor Miss E. Forehead declared a personal and prejudicial interest in this item (being
employed by a company named in the report) and left the meeting during consideration of
this item.

The Chair welcomed representatives from Cornerstone Support Services Limited and
Shelter Cymru, who were in attendance to speak in relation to the report.

Andrew Clarke and Stephen Dwyer from Cornerstone Support Services led the introductions
and explained that Cornerstone work in local communities to deliver a positive support
solution for rough sleepers or those at risk of being homeless, and work with key partners to
address homelessness within South Wales.

With the aid of a slideshow presentation, Mr Clarke outlined the work that Cornerstone carry
out with rough sleepers, together with details of their housing model pilot project and their
work with local authorities (including Caerphilly Council) to reduce instances of
homelessness across the region.

The Scrutiny Committee were advised that there are currently 80 open cases of rough
sleeping in Wales, which include several individuals in Caerphilly county borough who do so
on a regular basis. Mr Clarke explained that this is often down to personal choice or
because they are unable to cope with the pressures of maintaining a tenancy, and so
Cornerstone works with these individuals to assess their needs and progress their options.
There are also 66 open cases of sofa surfers currently known to Cornerstone, who are also
classed as homeless and require support in order to be properly housed.

Mr Clarke outlined Cornerstone’s response to instances of rough sleeping, explaining that
staff will respond to any such reports as quickly as possible, and will make contact with the
rough sleeper, assess their situation, establish what services they may benefit from (such as
healthcare) and assist with practical support to access and link in with these services. He
explained that within the Caerphilly county borough, Cornerstone work very closely with the
Council’'s Housing Team to assess all available resources to house rough sleepers as
quickly as possible, and gave an example of a case in Blackwood where a tenancy was
secured for a person in need within a matter of hours

It was noted that in the last 3.5 years, Cornerstone have built up an extensive network of
housing and support contacts across the region and have rehomed over 350 people in
Wales. Of these numbers, 90% have maintained their tenancy, and Cornerstone work
closely with private sector landlords to create alternative letting solutions. The organisation
also works with the Caerphilly Churches Night Shelters voluntary scheme to provide a safe
and warm place for rough sleepers to stay overnight during the winter period. Over 100
individuals used this scheme during Winter 2017/18.

Moving forward, Cornerstone are looking to create a housing model to reduce instances of
homelessness and rough sleeping, which will include 3-bedroom houses of multiple
occupation (HMOs) and link in with private landlords and registered social housing (RSLS).
Staff from Cornerstone will be on hand to deal with any instances of anti-social behaviour or
tenant issues. As a pilot project for this housing model, a shared living facility is being
developed in conjunction with the Council's Housing Team and Charter Housing. This
involves a 5-bedroom shared house in Blackwood, which will be available to under-35s in

Page 4



need of housing and who are ready to work. The project will also link into volunteering
opportunities and other agencies to enable these individuals to find work. Once the young
person is settled, the project will act as a stepping stone to prepare them for independent
living.

The Committee were advised that the project presents huge challenges but is achievable
with the support of the Caerphilly Housing Team and it will be the first project of its type for a
local authority in Wales. Cornerstone are also liaising with the Housing Team to ascertain if
CCBC properties that has been vacant for over 12 months could be used to accommodate
rough sleepers, and are seeking the backing of Members in this regard. The Council is also
examining its housing stock to determine whether it can be used more flexibly to
accommodate homeless persons.

Members were asked to note that Caerphilly county borough has identified gradually
reducing numbers of actual rough sleepers over the past three years, compared to a rise in
the Welsh average, which is a positive step forwards in regards to tackling the issue of
homelessness in the area.

The Scrutiny Committee thanked the Cornerstone representatives for the detailed and
informative presentation and discussion took place on its contents

Members expressed concerns regarding proposed HMOs in view of the difficulties that
communal living might present for vulnerable individuals and suggested setting a fixed-term
period for these arrangements, so that the person has motivation to move towards living in
their own home. Officers explained that the Blackwood HMO is very much a pilot project
and operates through the premise of employment opportunities, so therefore the individual
would need to be actively seeking work and the HMO would not be used as an end solution
for homelessness cases. Cornerstone also emphasised that they would have a strong
presence and involvement in the HMO in order to counteract any tenant issues that might
arise.

A Member expressed the need for the housing model to be effectively marketed and
communicated to those in need, and also queried how Cornerstone staff intended to
prioritise cases and deliver the project in challenging circumstances. Cornerstone explained
that they need to be flexible in dealing with rough sleepers as it is often difficult to contact
them (e.g. if they have not been able to charge their mobile telephone), and explained that
an increased availability of HMOs would mean that they are able to house those in need
more quickly.

Reference was made to the prominence of rough sleeping across larger towns/cities in
Wales and the potential for homeless people to migrate from other areas where the cost of
living is too high. Cornerstone spoke of the need to establish local connections in order to
assess whether there is more need for affordable housing in certain areas and offered to
address the Council’s Planning Committee in this regard if required. The Committee were
reassured that Caerphilly county borough does not have a significant problem in regards to
rough sleepers and that the Council were not proposing to open up a host of HMOs.
Rather, the Council would prefer to utilise their existing available properties and determine
how these can be put to best use to address homelessness.

Officers also outlined the difficulties in engaging private sector landlords regarding the use of
their properties to tackle homelessness cases and explained that there is a lack of incentives
available in this regard. The representatives from Shelter also voiced their support for a
need to bring long-term empty properties back into use. Members asked whether
consideration could be given to increasing council tax charges on empty second homes as
an incentive to bring them back into beneficial use. It was also suggested that these could be
offered up for rent to the Council to tackle homelessness, and it was agreed that this matter

Page 5



be discussed at the forthcoming Forward Work Programme workshop as a potential item for
inclusion at a future date.

In response to a Member’'s query regarding sofa surfers, Cornerstone explained that there
are a very low number of care leavers in this category as the Authority’s duty of care extends
until the age of 21. Cornerstone are finding that the majority of sofa surfers are under 30
and that there has been an increase in the number of female rough sleepers. A Member
also referred to the increase in people suffering from mental health problems and queried
how this is addressed by Cornerstone. It was explained that the organisation work very
closely with the Housing Team and a number of outreach workers to assess any cases that
may be high risk and to establish the best course of action moving forward.

Representatives from Shelter Cymru (Neil Davies and Jennie Bibbing) also addressed the
Committee and delivered an overview of how they tackle homelessness across the county
borough and throughout Wales. A copy of their Casework Statistical Report for the period
1st April 2017 to 31st March 2018 was tabled at the meeting, which provided a breakdown of
the annual Caerphilly caseload. It was noted that during 2017/18, Shelter Cymru’s housing
advice services assisted 436 households living in the Caerphilly County Borough area. This
represented 5% of the total 9,500 households assisted in Wales last year.

Shelter Cymru outlined the economic changes taking place across Wales and the factors
that contribute to cases of homelessness or potential homelessness. Particular reference
was made to a noticeable rise in the housing problems being experienced by council tenants
that may lead to homelessness (including issues such as rent arrears). As a result, Shelter
urged the Authority to be fair and flexible in its actions, and to examine court cases and best
practice, before taking action against its tenants that could lead to eviction or difficulty in
getting onto social housing in the future.

Officers confirmed that the Council’s eviction rates had significantly dropped in the past year
and that a limit has been placed on outstanding debt arrears. They also confirmed that the
Council works flexibly and in accordance with good practice to examine individual
circumstances relating to housing arrears before taking action against the tenant.

The Scrutiny Committee were also referred to the contents of the Officer's report on the
Homelessness Strategy and Action Plan 2018, which provided an overview of the Council’s
our homeless services and introduce the emerging areas of focus for inclusion in the
forthcoming Homelessness Strategy and Action Plan. The report highlighted the key
indicators used to inform the strategy development, the existing local delivery mechanisms
and partnerships created to respond to housing need, and also highlighted the areas where
more collaboration is needed within existing council services and with external partners and
stakeholders.

Having noted the contents of the presentations and the Officer's report, the Scrutiny
Committee thanked the representatives from Cornerstone Support Services Limited and
Shelter Cymru for their attendance and for responding to the queries received during the
course of the debate.

FLAT ACCOMMODATION AT RIVER ROAD, PONTLOTTYN AND THE GROVE,
FOCHRIW

Shaun Couzens (Chief Housing Officer), presented the report, which had been considered
by the Caerphilly Homes Task Group on 17th May 2018. The report sought Members’
views on proposals to demolish the block of flats known as 1 to 9, River Road, Pontlottyn
and to take 3 to 6, The Grove, Fochriw, out of the Housing stock with a view to demolition of
the block in future years, prior to referral of the proposals to Cabinet for approval.

Page 6



Officers explained that issues associated with lack of demand are being experienced by all
partner landlords with housing stock in the Upper Rhymney Valley. Whilst there is unmet
need for single person accommodation throughout the county borough, demand for two and
three bed flats in the Upper Rhymney Valley is low with waiting lists regularly exhausted.

Members were advised that 1 to 9 River Road comprises a mix of 1, 2 and 3 bed flats, and 1
to 6, The Grove comprises two active shop units at ground floor, trading as a single
business, with two 2 bed flats located on each of the upper floors. Both blocks have been
affected by high levels of antisocial behaviour, crime and substance misuse. In addition, the
flats are very hard to let due to their location and property mix, in recent years have largely
been home to transient households, and are not conducive to community cohesion. Both
blocks are currently vacant and have been secured, and surveys have identified that
significant investment is required due to the external and internal fabric and boundaries in
order to bring them up to the Welsh Housing Quality Standard.

The report therefore recommended the demolition of both blocks, but that in recognition of
the presence of a successful business operating out of The Grove, the demolition of that
block be deferred until such time as the current lease expires or other arrangements
transpire. It was noted that consultation had been carried out with the local and
neighbouring ward Members and police, who had actively supported the proposal.

Discussion took place on the contents of the report and a Member queried if the Grove flats
located above the shop premises could be offered up to Cornerstone as potential
accommodation for homeless people. Officers explained that these are 2-bed flats and as
the Authority is already experiencing difficulty in letting 2-bedroom houses, it would not be
worthwhile to invest in these premises to bring them up to standard. Discussion also took
place regarding the use of the Housing Revenue Account to meet the costs of providing a
replacement shop facility, and Officers explained that they are looking to utilise alternative
grant funding for this purpose if possible.

Following consideration of the report and in taking into account the views of the Caerphilly
Homes Task Group, it was moved and seconded that the following recommendations be
referred to Cabinet for approval. By a show of hands this was unanimously agreed.

RECOMMENDED to Cabinet that:-
0] the block known as 1 to 9 River Road be demolished;

(ii) the principle to proceed with demolition be agreed in respect of 1 to 6, The
Grove, Fochriw, but that the demolition be deferred until the current lease of 1
and 2, The Grove expires, a suitable alternative premises is identified for the
business currently operating out of the block or the ongoing liability incurred
by the Council in maintaining the mothballed building is no longer considered
financially viable.

The meeting closed at 7.05 p.m.

Approved as a correct record and subject to any amendments or corrections agreed and
recorded in the minutes of the meeting held on 6th September 2018, they were signed by the
Chair.

CHAIR

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Agenda Iltem 6

B
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
>

POLICY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
6TH SEPTEMBER 2018

SUBJECT: POLICY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD
WORK PROGRAMME

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE
SERVICES

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To report the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 Forward Work Programmes are essential to ensure that Scrutiny Committee agendas reflect
the strategic issues facing the Council and other priorities raised by Members, the public or
stakeholders.

3. LINKS TO STRATEGY

3.1 The operation of scrutiny is required by the Local Government Act 2000 and subsequent
Assembly legislation. The Forward Work Programmes contribute to the following Well-being
Goals within the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2016 by ensuring there is an
effective scrutiny function and that council policies are scrutinised against the following goals:

A prosperous Wales

A resilient Wales

A healthier Wales

A more equal Wales

A Wales of cohesive communities

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
A globally responsible Wales

4. THE REPORT

4.1 The Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee forward work programme includes all reports
that were identified at the scrutiny committee meeting on 29th May 2018 and the workshop
held on 7th June 2018. The work programme outlines the reports planned for the period
September 2018 to April 2019.

4.2 The forward work programme is made up of reports identified by officers and members and
has been prioritised into three priority areas, priority 1, 2 or 3. Members are asked to consider
the work programme alongside the cabinet work programme and suggest any changes before
it is published on the council website. Scrutiny committee will review this work programme at

Page 9



every meeting going forward alongside any changes to the cabinet work programme or report
requests.

4.3 The Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme is attached at
Appendix 1. The Cabinet Forward Work Programme is attached at Appendix 2.

5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

5.1 This report contributes to the well-being goals as set out in links to strategy above. It is
consistent with the five ways of working as defined within the sustainable development
principle in that by ensuring the scrutiny function is effective when reviewing services and
policies and ensure it considers the wellbeing goals.

6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are no specific equalities implications arising as a result of this report.

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 There are no specific financial implications arising as a result of this report.

8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

8.1 There are no specific personnel implications arising as a result of this report.

9. CONSULTATIONS

9.1 There are no consultation responses that have not been included in this report.

10. RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1 That Members consider any changes and agree the final forward work programme prior to
publication.

11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

11.1 To improve the operation of scrutiny.

12. STATUTORY POWER

12.1 The Local Government Act 2000.

Author: Rebecca Barrett, Committee Services Officer

Consultees: Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director for Education and Corporate Services
Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services / Monitoring Officer

Appendices:
Appendix 1  Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme.
Appendix 2  Cabinet Work Programme.

Page 10



TT obed

Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

APPENDIX 1
Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme April 2018 to April 2019
Meeting Date: 6th September 2018
Subject Purpose Key Issues Witnesses

Remodelling and
Reclassification of Older
Persons Accommodation

(P1)

To provide members with proposals
for remodelling a small number of
sheltered housing schemes in the
eastern valley.

For members to consider a number of options in
relation to our sheltered housing schemes which
may include improvements remodelling,
alternative use and possibly demolition.

e Shaun Couzens -
Chief Housing Officer

e Fiona Wilkins — Public
Sector Housing
Manager

e Angela Hiscox —
Elderly Persons
Housing Manager

Options for Increasing the
Supply of Council Housing

(P1)

To advise Members of the new
funding stream for Local Authority
house building and to outline a
development programme for new
build Council homes. The report sets
out how we will maximise the
funding opportunities available over
the next three years and deliver up
to 46 new build homes, with an
indicative total grant of £3,893,923
and indicative overall investment of
£6,713,791. The report also confirms
the sites available to develop, and
the proposed specification for new
build.

To confirm the new build Council Housing
programme, including the preferred delivery
option in order for the Council to utilise the
Affordable Housing Grant funding that has been
allocated to CCBC.

e Shaun Couzens -
Chief Housing Officer

o Claire Davies —
Principal Housing
Officer

e Kevin Fortey —
Housing Development
Officer

Caerphilly Homes Asset
Management Strategy

To outline the asset management
strategy for Caerphilly Homes
following the achievement of the
Welsh Housing Quality Standard in
2020

To agree the principles of a 5 year asset
management strategy, the proposed delivery
plan and the financial assumptions made to
support the delivery of the strategy

e Shaun Couzens —
Chief Housing Officer




2T obed

Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Electric Vehicle Strategy

The report seeks Members
consideration and endorsement of
the Electric Vehicle Strategy and
Action Plan.

Caerphilly County Borough Council’s first
Electric Vehicle Strategy and Action Plan sets
out the proposed approach to supporting the
installation of electric vehicle infrastructure to
maximise the economic, social and
environmental benefits and opportunities that
electric vehicles provide, and for electric
vehicles to be a fundamental part of the
Council’s own fleet.

Paul Cooke




¢T obed

Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Meeting Date: 2nd October 2018

Subject

Purpose

Key Issues

Witnesses

Year End Performance for
Corporate Services 2017/18

(P2)

Performance of Corporate Services
for 2017/18

Highlighting the exceptions and looking forward
to 2018/19. The future challenges, setting out
key objectives/priorities for the next twelve
months, and identifying areas for improvement.

Richard Edmunds — Director
of Education and Corporate
Services

Wellbeing Objective WO5 —
Investment in Council Homes

(P1)

To provide an update of progress
against the Councils highest
priorities for 2017/18.

To provide a year end update against the
2017/18 Well-being Objective action plan using
Pl data regarding completion of internal and
external works programmes and adds
information on peoples satisfaction with the
internal works.

The update should identify any emerging
slippage or additional progress against the
action plan

Shaun Couzens — Chief
Housing Officer

Year End Performance
Housing Services

Performance Monitoring

An update on performance of the

Housing Service during 2017/18, to set out the
key service objectives for 2018/19 and

highlight any potential challenges that may affect

Shaun Couzens — Chief
Housing Officer

Dave Street — Corporate
Director Social Services

(P1) delivery of these objectives.

Disabled Facilities Grant — Information report to provide An update on performance of Disabled Facilities | Shaun Couzens — Chief

Performance Members with an update regarding Grants during 2017/18 and highlight any Housing Officer/Claire Davies
Performance Monitoring of Disabled | potential challenges that may affect delivery of — Principal Housing Officer
Facilities Grant and the information the Performance Indicator. Identify any areas of

(P2) regarding the implementation of improvement linked to the implementation of

ENABLE.

ENABLE.




T abed

Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Meeting Date: 13th November 2018

Subject

Purpose

Key Issues

Witnesses

Flexible Working — Agile
Working; Inclement Weather

Lynne Donovan - Head of
People Services

Recruitment and Selection/
Probation

Lynne Donovan - Head of
People Services

Apprenticeships

Lynne Donovan - Head of
People Services

Organisational Development
Strategy

Lynne Donovan - Head of
People Services

Homelessness Strategy

Shaun Couzens — Chief
Housing Officer




GT obed

Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Meeting Date: 15th January 2019

Subject

Purpose

Key Issues

Witnesses

Treasury Management
Annual Strategy, Prudential
Indicators and MRP Policy
2019/20

Nadeem Akhtar

Housing Revenue Account
Charges 2019/20

Lesley Allen

6 Month Update Wellbeing
Objectives

Ros Roberts

Council Tax Premiums

Nicole Scammell — Head of
Corporate Finance and
Section 151 Officer




9T abed

Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Meeting Date: 26th February 2019

Subject

Purpose

Key Issues

Witnesses

Legal Services — Resources

Member request

Request from Committee.

Rob Tranter — Head of Legal
Services and Monitoring
Officer

Local Housing Strategy

Shaun Couzens — Chief
Housing Officer

Rationalisation of Assets/
Community Hubs

Mark Williams — Head of
Property




/T obed

Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Meeting Date: 9th April 2019

Subject

Purpose

Key Issues

Witnesses




gT obed

Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme

Meeting Date: to be confirmed

Subject Purpose Key Issues Witnesses

WAQO — WHQS Outcome Shaun Couzens — Chief
Report Housing Officer

Shared Resource Service To present the proposal in respect of | The SRS is a joint committee that presently Matthew Lewis SRS
(SRS) (Special Meeting) the Authority joining the SRS. included Gwent Police, Torfaen CBC, Newport

CBC, Blaenau Gwent CBC and Monmouth CBC.
This collaboration provides IT Services to its
(P1) Members.

Poverty Strategy Rob Hartshorn — Head of
Public Protection

Business Improvement
Portfolio

Presentation from Local
House Builders RE
Affordable Homes and
Community Benefits

(Member Request — Special
Meeting)




Cabinet Forward Work Programme (Scrutiny)

N
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

> 4

CAERFFIL]

APPENDIX 2
5TH SEPTEMBER 2018 (CANCELLED) Service Area
(SPECIAL) Key Issues Service Area
12TH SEPTEMBER 2018
Council Homes Asset Management | To seek Cabinet agreement for the principles of a 5 year asset management strategy, the | Housing
Strategy. proposed delivery plan and the financial assumptions made to support the delivery of the
strategy.

Remodelling and Reclassification of | To provide members with proposals for remodelling a small number of sheltered housing | Housing
.Blder Persons Accommodation. schemes in the eastern valley, in order for members to consider a number of options
Q which may include improvements, remodelling, alternative use and possibly demolition.

ptions for Increasing the Supply of | To confirm the new build Council Housing programme, including the preferred delivery | Housing

ouncil Housing.
H
©

option in order for the Council to utilise the Affordable Housing Grant funding that has
been allocated to CCBC.

19TH SEPTEMBER 2018

Key Issues

Service Area

Hackney Carriage Fare
Increase/Amendment.

To advise Cabinet of the Consultation Response.

Public Protection

To Adopt The WG High Street Rate
Relief Scheme 2018/19 — Grant
Funding.

This report recommends that Cabinet adopts the WG High Street Rate Relief Scheme for
2018/19 in order to obtain the WG grant funding which will reduce the amount of business
rates payable by those ratepayers eligible for this rate relief.

Finance

Electric Vehicles and Charging
Facilities

To provide Cabinet with proposals to deliver some of the actions identified within the
CCBC Electric Vehicle Strategy Action Plan and to request funding to deliver these
proposals.

Public Protection

VAT Exemption on the Supply of
Sporting Services.

The report will provide Cabinet with details of a VAT exemption on sporting services and
will seek approval to implement the exemption with effect from the 1st October 2018.

Finance




Cabinet Forward Work Programme (Scrutiny)

N
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

> 4

CAERFFIL]

APPENDIX 2

3RD OCTOBER 2018

Key Issues

Service Area

Council’'s Annual Report for 2017/18.

To present to Cabinet the Authority’s Annual Self-Assessment for 2017/18 to seek the
views and approval prior to publication by 30th October 2018.

Policy

Strategy for the disposal of selected
Land with Residential Development
potential.

The report seeks Cabinet approval for the strategy for the disposal of five key medium to
large parcels of land all of which are suitable for residential re-development.

Property Services

Jpyogramme.

Cwmfelinfach as part of the Fields in Trust, Centenary Fields programme.

Strategic Equality Plan — Annual To update Members on the progress made during the financial year 2017/18 against | Policy
Monitoring and Improvement Report | targets in the Council’s current Strategic Equality Plan and seek Cabinet approval for
2017-2018. submission of the annual monitoring and improvement reports to the relevant
commissions before the deadline dates.
Fields in Trust - Centenary Fields To seek the views of Cabinet on the formal dedication of the War Memorial Garden at | Regeneration

gir Quiality Options Appraisal.
@

To update members on the feasibility process for Hafod-yr-ynys and to discuss the
potential options going forward for consideration and seek Cabinet approval to submit the
required WelTAG Stage 2 report (containing those options) to Welsh Government.

Public Protection

N
Qlst Century Schools

Finance

17TH OCTOBER 2018

Key Issues

Service Area

Grants 18/19 Overview -
Regeneration

Regeneration

CABINET AS TRUSTEES OF BLACKWOOD
MINERS’ INSTITUTE - 17TH OCTOBER 2018

Key Issues

Service Area

31ST OCTOBER 2018

Key Issues

Service Area




Cabinet Forward Work Programme (Scrutiny)

N
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

> 4

CAERFFIL]

APPENDIX 2

14TH NOVEMBER 2018

Key Issues

Service Area

Draft Sport and Active Recreation
Strategy 2019-29

To seek Cabinet’s endorsement of the Draft Sport and Leisure Strategy.

Public Protection

Draft Budget Proposals for 2019/20 | This report will seek Cabinet endorsement of draft budget proposals for the 2019/20 | Finance
financial year based on the Provisional Local Government Financial Settlement. This will
then allow for a period of consultation prior to consideration of final 2019/20 budget
proposals by Cabinet and Council in February 2019.
Future Lighting and Energy Saving To consider options available to achieve street lighting energy savings that could | Communities
Proposals. contribute to the Medium Term Financial Plan and mitigate energy cost increases.
Public Toilet Strategy Regeneration

0

%STH NOVEMBER 2018

Key Issues

Service Area

model.

Nyhole Authority Mid-Year Revenue | The report will provide details of projected Whole-Authority revenue expenditure for the | Finance
HBudget Monitoring Report 2018/19 2018/19 financial year along with details of any significant issues arising. The report will

also update Cabinet on progress in delivering the approved savings for 2018/19.
Town Centre Events Programme. To seek Cabinet approval for revision of the Council’s current Town Centre Management | Planning

12TH DECEMBER 2018

Key Issues

Service Area

Council Tax Base 2019/20

The report provides details of the Council Tax base for 2019/20 for tax setting purposes
and the collection percentage to be applied.

Finance

16TH JANUARY 2019

Key Issues

Service Area




N
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILI
Cabinet Forward Work Programme (Scrutiny) 4
APPENDIX 2
CABINET AS TRUSTEES OF BLACKWOOD Key Issues Service Area
MINERS’ INSTITUTE - 16TH JANUARY 2019
30TH JANUARY 2019 Key Issues Service Area
Corporate Risk Register. To provide an update of the Corporate Risk Register in accordance with the Council’s | Policy
Risk Management Strategy. The updated Corporate Risk Register (CRR) is presented to
Audit Committee so there is opportunity for the Committee to satisfy itself that appropriate
arrangements are in place for the council’s risk management processes to be regularly
v and robustly monitored and scrutinised.
Qpdate on Reserves To present details of the usable reserves held by the Authority and to outline proposals | Finance
}% for the use of reserves in some areas.
)
Ndousing Revenue Account Charges | To present details of proposed increases in rent charges for the 2019/20 financial year. Finance

2019/20.

13TH FEBRUARY 2019

Key Issues

Service Area

Budget Proposals 2019/20 and
Medium-Term Financial Strategy
2019/2024.

This report will seek Cabinet endorsement of final budget proposals for the 2019/20
financial year prior to them being presented to Council on the 21st February 2019.

Finance

27TH FEBRUARY 2019

Key Issues

Service Area

13TH MARCH 2019

Key Issues

Service Area




N
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFIL]

Cabinet Forward Work Programme (Scrutiny) 4
APPENDIX 2
27TH MARCH 2019 Key Issues Service Area
10TH APRIL 2019 Key Issues Service Area

CABINET AS TRUSTEES OF BLACKWOOD Key Issues Service Area
INERS’ INSTITUTE - 10TH APRIL 2019

oD

(@]

D

N

w .

24TH APRIL 2019 Key Issues Service Area
15TH MAY 2019 Key Issues Service Area
29TH MAY 2019 Key Issues Service Area

12TH JUNE 2019

Key Issues

Service Area




N
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFIL]

Cabinet Forward Work Programme (Scrutiny) 4
APPENDIX 2
26TH JUNE 2019 Key Issues Service Area
10TH JULY 2019 Key Issues Service Area

CABINET AS TRUSTEES OF BLACKWOOD
HINERS’ INSTITUTE — 10TH JULY 2018

Key Issues

Service Area

iz pbe

N

4TH JULY 2019 Key Issues

Service Area




Agenda Iltem 8

B
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
> 4

POLICY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
6TH SEPTEMBER 2018

SUBJECT: REMODELLING & RECLASSIFICATION OF OLDER PERSONS
ACCOMMODATION

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE
SERVICES

1.1 The attached report will be presented to the Caerphilly Homes Task Group on 4th September
2018.

1.2 The views expressed at the meeting and the recommendations of the Caerphilly Homes Task
Group will be reported verbally to the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee.

1.3 Members are asked to consider the contents of the report and make a recommendation to
Cabinet.

Author: R. Barrett, Committee Services Officer, Ext. 4245

Appendices:
Appendix 1  Report to Caerphilly Homes Task Group on 4th September 2018 - Agenda Item 9

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



W
CAERPHILLY APPENDIX 1

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
>

CAERPHILLY HOMES TASK GROUP - 4TH SEPTEMBER 2018

SUBJECT: REMODELLING & RECLASSIFICATION OF OLDER PERSONS
ACCOMMODATION

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR SOCIAL SERVICES AND HOUSING

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT -

11

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

The report requests that prior to its presentation to the Policy and Resources Scrutiny
Committee and thereafter Cabinet, Members consider recommendations relating to:

initial feasibility studies for the remodelling of 6 sheltered housing schemes and proposed
options

re-classification of Hafod Y Bryn, Risca to older persons accommodation and Tredegar Court,
Crosskeys to a standard sheltered housing scheme

complete decommissioning of 4 partly decommissioned schemes in the Caerphilly Basin
re-classification of specified units of older persons housing stock in the County Borough
granting of delegated powers to Officers, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Homes
and Places to re-classify older persons accommodation to general needs using the principles
specified within this report

SUMMARY

In the Risca/Crosskeys areas alone there are 6 Council owned sheltered housing schemes in
addition to Housing Association provision. There are also a significant number of designated
older persons units within these communities. A review of these schemes with consideration
for remodelling was required due to the high number of schemes and the lack of demand in
the locality for the type of accommodation on offer, not all of which was considered fit for
purpose. A decision taken in relation to any of the schemes mentioned in this report could
impact on the other schemes in the area hence the combined recommendations in this report.

A report was presented to and approved by Caerphilly Homes Task Group and the Policy &
Resources Scrutiny Committee in September 2015 to undertake feasibility studies for the
potential remodelling of 6 sheltered housing schemes in the Eastern Valley. These initial
studies have been completed and this report provides the detail and estimated financial
implications for the remodelling options. It also includes options other than remodelling for
consideration by Members.

Since the report was presented in September 2015, further issues have arisen and
investigations have identified the need for a wider review of certain older person services
which are also included in this report.

The scheme located at Hafod Y Bryn is not operating well as a sheltered housing scheme and

would suit reclassification. A feasibility study has been undertaken and details are provided in
this report.

Page 27



2.5

2.6

2.7

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.1

This report also considers the removal of the extra care classification for Tredegar Court as it
no longer provides an extra care service. The proposal would assist in stabilising future
allocations providing a fairer service charge for tenants and remove the need for HRA subsidy
to the service.

The proposal for full decommissioning of the 4 partly decommissioned older persons schemes
in the Caerphilly Basin to replace the hard wire alarm service with a dispersed alarm service is
also given consideration in this report.

There is a significant unmet need for general needs accommodation for single people
throughout most of the County Borough. In order to assist in meeting this significant unmet
demand this report proposes that all 1 bed houses currently designated for older persons be
re-designated for general needs use. In addition, it recommends that certain low demand
older person flats be re-classified for general needs use. It also recommends approval for
delegated officer decisions in future, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Homes and
Places for the re-classification of older persons stock, where it is evidenced that demand for
such older persons’ accommodation is low and there is significant unmet need for general
needs accommodation within that community.

LINKS TO STRATEGY

The Corporate Plan 2018-2023 Well-being Objective 3 addresses the supply, condition and
sustainability of homes throughout the County Borough and the provision of advice,
assistance or support to help improve people’s health and well-being.

The Strategy for Older People in Wales 2013-2023 ensures that older people in Wales have
the resources they need to deal with the challenges and opportunities they face for the future.

Improving Lives & Communities — Homes in Wales 2010 Welsh Government Report. This sets
out the national context on meeting housing need, homelessness and housing related support
services.

The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015 sets out the following wellbeing goals which
link with the aims of this report:-

A resilient Wales

A prosperous Wales

A healthier Wales

A more equal Wales

A Wales of cohesive communities

A globally responsible Wales

The Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) is intended to ensure that all social housing is
improved and maintained to achieve specific standards. The Council is committed to ensuring
that the WHQS investment transforms not only homes but also lives and communities.
Caerphilly Well-Being Plan (2018-2023): Positive Places - Enabling our communities to be
resilient and sustainable.

THE REPORT

REMODELLING

There are 34 sheltered housing schemes comprising of 988 units of sheltered housing in the

Caerphilly County Borough, 15 of these schemes are under one roof. One scheme is
classified as an extra care scheme.

Page 28



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Following a Sheltered Housing review in 2013, six sheltered housing schemes in the Eastern
Valleys area were identified as unfit for purpose. This was mainly due to the bedsits and
small flats within the schemes as well as accessibility issues. In 2015 Cabinet approved the
completion of preliminary studies to consider the feasibility of remodelling these schemes to
meet future needs and demands, committing to consider implementation of viable options
post 2020.

Five of these schemes, namely Castle Court, Ynyswen, Waunfawr House, St Marys Court and
Ty Melin have been inspected by the CCBC Building Consultancy team to establish their initial
potential for remodelling. All five have been considered potentially suitable for remodelling
and the associated draft plans and estimated costings have been provided. Remodelling
would significantly reduce the number of units at each of the schemes with a consequential
loss of rental income. Service charges would also be apportioned to a lesser number of
tenants within the schemes resulting in higher charges to the remaining tenants.

Whilst initial consideration was given to the potential remodelling of Britannia Court, this has
not progressed to formal detailed inspection to determine feasibility due to the observations
incorporated into this report.

There are significant cost and risk implications attached to the remodelling options for the
schemes, which are set out in this report and this contributes to a number of concerns for the
future viability of these schemes. Future demand for any remodelled scheme is not
guaranteed. Despite the significant investment required the impact on service charge costs
per scheme and per household is uncertain. In addition, the potential impact of possible
further changes to housing benefits and Supporting People funding is currently unable to be
determined. Also local development proposals may shift demand from existing local authority
housing to new build properties if they are perceived to be more desirable and it can not be
guaranteed that the remodelling proposals would sufficiently satisfy current and future needs,
demands and legislative requirements.

Whilst the current Common Housing Register evidences some demand for older persons and
sheltered housing, waiting lists for Castle Court, Ynyswen, Waunfawr House, St Marys Court
and Ty Melin continue to be regularly exhausted as the smaller properties and bedsit
accommodation are considered to be undesirable and impractical. This was a key factor in
deciding which schemes should be considered for remodelling.

There are currently 34 voids within the schemes identified for remodelling 31 of which are
bedsits, reflecting the current lack of demand for this type of property. Since the earlier report
in 2015, in total 48 properties have become void across these schemes.

New voids from 01/04/2016 to 16/02/2018:

Scheme Number | New Voids | New Voids | Total New Current

of units | 2016/17 2017/18 Voids Voids
2016-18

BRITANNIA COURT/CLOSE, RISCA | 30 1 0

CASTLE COURT (UNDER ONE 41 6 11 17

ROOF ONLY), CROSSKEYS

ST MARYS COURT, RISCA 33 1 5 6 0

TY MELIN, CROESPENMAEN 33 7 6 13 3

WAUNFAWR HOUSE, 22 5 5 10 10

CROSSKEYS

YNYSWEN, PONTLLANFRAITH 19 3 4 7 4

Total 178 22 26 48 34

Page 29




Average void duration of the 48 properties that have become void since 01/04/2016:

Scheme Average void duration (days)
BRITANNIA COURT/CLOSE, RISCA 34

CASTLE COURT, CROSSKEYS 234

ST MARYS COURT, RISCA 76

TY MELIN, CROESPENMAEN 131

WAUNFAWR HOUSE, CROSSKEYS 283

YNYSWEN, PONTLLANFRAITH 154

Overall average 181

4.8

The rent loss for all voids excluding the support/service charges for each scheme from

2015/16 to date equates to:

Scheme

Rent Loss

BRITANNIA COURT/CLOSE, RISCA

£6,063.84

CASTLE COURT, CROSSKEYS

£72,224.72

ST MARYS COURT, RISCA

£7,726.02

TY MELIN, CROESPENMAEN

£37,450.35

WAUNFAWR HOUSE, CROSSKEYS

£43,106.04

YNYSWEN, PONTLLANFRAITH

£36,391.64

4.9

4.10

411

412

413

4.14

There is a high concentration of sheltered housing and older persons stock in parts of the
Eastern Valleys area, with 70% of stock being designated for older persons or sheltered
compared in the communities of Risca and Crosskeys in comparison to 30% across the stock
as a whole. This contributes to the issues of low demand for sheltered accommodation.
There are no applicants on the waiting list for sheltered housing bedsit accommodation in
these areas and only a limited demand for 1 and 2 bed sheltered housing accommodation.

Discussions have been held and continue with partner agencies, including Social Services, to
consider potential opportunities for alternative uses of the schemes, however this is proving
difficult due to the size, location, access and make up of the schemes under review.

Consultation is ongoing with Charter/Pobl regarding their potential future plans to develop
additional older persons housing in the Risca area, which would be tailor made, up to date
and specialist, mixed tenure housing if it were to progress. This could further impact on the
future demand for existing local authority stock as it would offer a credible modern alternative.

Demolition of some of the schemes identified for remodelling, and the subsequent sale of the
land is an option due to the high cost implications associated with remodelling, the close
proximity of competing schemes and the uncertainty of future demand. Initial discussions
have indicated there would be demand for redevelopment of one or more of the sites for
housing use.

If any remodelling is approved, it is anticipated the work would be undertaken between 2020
and 2025 and could potentially be carried out by the in-house workforce to provide continuity
for those employees post achievement of WHQS in 2020. Due to the extent of works
associated with remodelling consideration will need to be given to decanting of tenants, on a
temporary basis (or permanently if this were their preference) to enable works to proceed.

The following remodelling proposals and estimated costs have been provided for the
aforementioned schemes, they vary in content and detail with regard to the specification of
work but give an indication of the spend required to bring these schemes up to the required

Page 30



4.15

4.15.1

4.15.2

minimum standard. It is anticipated that further work would be required as the projects evolve
as the studies have not been invasive and unforeseen work should be expected.

Britannia Court, Risca
Britannia Court has been given initial consideration for remodelling however due to:

the increase in demand evidenced over the past two years

the scheme not having bedsit accommodation

no current void properties

well used communal facilities and good tenant engagement

its general good property condition, lift provision

recent improvements completed to main access for those with restricted mobility.

It is now proposed that this scheme be incorporated into the current WHQS programme of
work for sheltered housing for completion by 2020.

There are 22 units in the under one roof part of the scheme and 8 outside flats in two blocks
at Britannia Close set across the main road, which are also part of the scheme. Recent
consultation responses from the tenants of these outside flat blocks in relation to the service
charges review have indicated that the current tenants do not regard themselves as part of
the scheme, as their location does not lend itself to easy use of the under one roof facilities.
Subject to a feasibility study of the drainage system and tenant consultation, there is an option
to fully decommission the 8 outside flats and separate them from the sheltered housing
scheme by reclassifying them as designated older persons, non sheltered housing stock or an
alternative housing use. In considering this option we recognise the requirement to consult to
obtain the views of the current tenants in both the outside flats and the main scheme. Should
these flats be reclassified the tenants in the flats would see a saving on service charges as
they would no longer be service charged for the communal facilities in the scheme, however
this would mean they would no longer have access to those facilities. Any approved change
would be subject to a variation of tenancy for the tenants in the flat blocks.

4.15.3 If after consultation there was a decision to proceed with reclassification, any tenant in the flats

4154

4.15.5

4.15.6

who objected could register for a transfer to the under one roof scheme. If the flats were
reclassified the tenants would retain the link to the Careline facility. They would not receive
the service of the Sheltered Housing Officer, support planning or housing related support,
however they could request assistance from the Floating Support service if any housing
related support was required at any time. As they would not be able to use the laundry
facilities at the sheltered housing scheme any WHQS work to their kitchens would need to
ensure there is space for a washing machine and adequate drainage. The flats already have
washing line facilities. The flats also have their grass cut under the grounds maintenance
arrangements for the scheme and this would also need to be reviewed. If the tenants wish to
retain this service if reclassification goes ahead then this element of the service charges
would continue to apply.

Reclassification of outside flat blocks would impact on the tenants of the under one roof block
as the service charges would be spread across fewer tenants however, the scheme is
currently subject to the service charges cap.

The weekly service charges for the scheme currently equate to £27.89 (30 units), but are
currently capped at £27.35 for most tenants. Reclassification of the outside blocks of flats
would reduce the units at the scheme by 8 and the service charges (uncapped amount) would
have the potential to increase to £38.03 (22 units).

If a decision is taken to separate the flats from the scheme, every effort would be made to

work with the tenants in reducing the service charges for the scheme where possible and
practical.

Page 31



4.16

Ty Melin, Croespenmaen

4.16.1 Comprises 33 under one roof extremely small 1 bed units, 3 of which are currently void. The

4.16.2

remodelling proposals are to redesign all units, combining the units to provide partial
compliance with the WHQS standard, with 20 fully compliant and 3 non compliant units.
Proposals include:

Electrical upgrade

Heating upgrade

Provision of new passenger lift
Additional car parking facilities
Redecoration

Window and door alterations/renewal

Estimated cost of remodelling is £1,720,000, equating to £74,783 per unit (23). The weekly
service charges for the scheme currently equate to £26.76 (33 units), with installation of a lift
and a reduction in units this would have the potential to increase to £40.52 (23 units).

4.16.3 This is the only sheltered housing scheme in this area but it is in a poor location with few local

4.17

facilities. The nature of the 3 storey design does not lend itself well to the installation of a
standard passenger lift, although this can be provided at a cost. Remodelling would result in
less rental income and higher service charges for the tenants. The site itself would be
desirable for re-development due to its location.

Ynyswen, Pontllanfraith

4.17.1 This is a single storey under one roof scheme with 19 units, comprising 12 bedsits, 6 one bed

flats and 1 two bed flat. 4 bedsits are currently void. Remodelling would reduce the units at
the scheme to 13 units and the fully compliant WHQS option is:

¢ Reconfigure existing bedsits to provide 8 fully WHQS compliant units and retain 5 existing
1 bed flats, including energy metering, at an estimated cost of £820,000 which equates to
£63,076 per new unit (13)

4.17.2 The estimated costings include:

4.17.3

4.17.4

4.18

4.18.1

e replacement heating system
improved drainage work
window renewal/alterations
redecoration

electrical upgrade.

The uncapped weekly service charges for the scheme currently equate to £35.75 (19 units),
currently capped at £27.35 for most tenants. With a reduction in units this would have the
potential to increase to £52.25 (13 units).

This is the only sheltered housing scheme in this locality which is generally a high demand
area for general needs accommodation. It is not located close to community facilities. There
are older persons bungalows close by. Remodelling would reduce the number of units
significantly and increase the service charges to the remaining units. If we were to proceed
with remodelling there would be scope in the future to reclassify the scheme for alternative
purposes if demand for the sheltered housing is not sustained.

Castle Court, Pontywaun

Comprises of 56 units in total. There are 41 under one roof units which include 28 bedsits.
There are also 15 outside properties in four separate blocks (14 one bed flats, 1 two bed
house) which have not been considered as part of this remodelling exercise. There are
currently 17 voids in the under one roof building, of which 16 are bedsits. The option
presented for remodelling the under one roof units to a fully WHQS compliant scheme is:

Page 32



e £2,445,000, equating to £84,310 per new unit in the main building (29)

e additional £40,000 for a new accessible lift

e Estimates for the full remodelling include renewal of electrics, replacement of heating
system, decoration, windows, doors, provision of new scooter store, car park
improvements, new bin store, drainage work

e Carpet costs are not included

4.18.2 This option would reduce the number of units to 29 flats within the under one roof scheme,
totalling 44 units for the scheme when including the 15 outside flats. Weekly service charges
for the scheme currently equate to £25.88 (56 units), with a reduction in units this would have
the potential to increase to £32.93 (44 units).

4.18.3 The budget for a comparable new build alternative on the site has been estimated at
£4,513,375.

4.18.4 The scheme is low demand due to the bedsit accommodation. It is in a location where there
are other Council and Housing Association sheltered housing schemes in close proximity
which are more desirable. This scheme would require a high level of investment and the
remodelling would result in less rental income and higher service charges for the tenants. The
site is large and would lend itself to development.

4.18.5 If remodelling proposals go ahead or a decision is taken to close the scheme there is an option
to consider reclassification of the 15 outside flats from the under one roof element of the
sheltered housing scheme and reclassifying them to designated older persons
accommodation or an alternative use e.g. single persons accommodation, similar to the
Britannia Court sheltered housing scheme as detailed above.

4,19 St Marys Court, Risca

4.19.1 Comprises of 33 under one roof units in total. There are 16 one bed flats, 16 bedsits and 1
three bed house (ex Wardens property), across two wings and two storeys, jointed by a single
storey block housing communal facilities. There are currently no void properties at the
scheme.

4.19.2 The remodelling proposal to a fully WHQS compliant scheme consists of:

e Bedsits in each ‘block’ combined to produce one bed, two person flats, reducing the
number of units to 25

e The kitchen and adjacent store in the one bedroom flats be combined to open the living

room and the boiler be repositioned to improve the space available

Providing a lift for each of the two wings (£65,000 per lift)

Entrance reconfigured to increase foyer space and provide 2 accessible WCs

Redecoration

Estimated cost: £2,746,250, equating to £109,850 per new unit (25)

Associated external scheme improvement work has not been included. There is an option to
reduce costs by providing only one part of the scheme with a lift.

4.19.3 The uncapped weekly service charges for the scheme currently equate to £30.98 (33 units),
currently capped at £27.35 for most tenants. With a reduction in units this would have the
potential to increase to £43.85 (25 units with service charges for 2 lifts in situ).

4.19.4 This scheme is in a good level location close to local facilities however the bedsit units are
difficult to let. The scheme is across two floors with two separate wings and it does not have a
lift. Remodelling would result in less rental income and higher service charges for the tenants.
The site itself would be desirable for re-development due to its location.

Page 33



420 Waunfawr House, Crosskeys

4.20.1 This is a 3 storey under one roof scheme with 22 units comprising 16 bedsits, 5 one bed flats
and 1 three bed flat. There are currently 10 void properties at this scheme. Remodelling to
replace bedsits with 1 bed flats would reduce the number of units to 16 and leave 3 non
WHQS compliant bedsits due to there being limited options for improvement.

4.20.2 The remodelling proposals include:
¢ Relocation of laundry room
e New heating, water, gas and electricity services internally
e Window renewal/alterations
The estimated cost does not include any external work to the communal areas, paths or
gardens.

4.20.3 Estimated cost of remodelling: £1,174,000 equating to £73,375 per new unit (16).

4.20.4 The uncapped weekly service charges for the scheme currently equate to £31.65 (22 units),
with a reduction in units this would have the potential to increase to £43.51 (16 units).

4.20.5 This scheme is located on a level site within reasonable distance to local facilities at the end of
a cul-de-sac which is an area of predominantly older persons’ accommodation and borders
the Crosskeys Coleg Gwent Campus. Parking and garden space is limited. The bedsits are
small and undesirable. Remodelling would result in less rental income and higher service
charges for the tenants.

4.21 Alternative Proposal

From the above information it is considered that the cost of remodelling each of the schemes
is exceptionally high. It is likely that future charges in some schemes would not be affordable
for most tenants who are not benefit dependant. In addition, future demand is not
guaranteed. Due to the cost and location of 3 of the schemes Officers are of the opinion that
it would be prudent to consider the closure of Castle Court (41 units, 24 tenants displaced,
excluding the outside blocks of flats), St Marys Court (33 units, 33 tenants displaced) and
Waunfawr House (22 units, 12 tenants displaced) and consideration could be given to
developing a new build replacement sheltered housing scheme on an alternative identified
site in the same locality e.g. Ty Darran. Such a scheme is considered to be a good long term
investment as it would provide a modern facility meeting the aspirations of current and future
tenants. It would incorporate appropriate accommodation and accessibility standards with up
to date technology. Such a scheme would also be designed to provide flexibility to adapt to
changing needs and demands. It is anticipated this could be a joint venture with Health and
Social Services to provide a community hub approach. This would necessitate detailed
negotiations with stakeholders and partners. A commitment could be given to rehousing the
displaced tenants to the new scheme giving them the opportunity to remain in their existing
community. The number of households to be displaced is currently 69, however this could be
managed to reduce this figure if future voids are not relet. Consideration to future use
including sale or re-development of the sites of the 3 former sheltered housing scheme sites
could then be progressed.

HAFOD Y BRYN, RISCA

4.22 This sheltered housing scheme consists of 28 flats across 7 two storey blocks. There is a
separate block housing the communal facilities on the ground floor and the former ‘Warden’ 2
bed flat on the first floor. This flat is now utilised as a sheltered housing unit within the
scheme.

4.23 The scheme has not always been designated for sheltered housing. It is located on a hill,
situated away from general local facilities. Several of the blocks are located away from the
highway with stepped access. There is a possibility that there will be a requirement for the
current road through the scheme to be widened in the future to provide access to facilitate the

Page 34



4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

4.29

4.30

4.31

4.32

development of a proposed new build site, which would further compromise the success of a
sheltered housing scheme.

The communal facilities consist of a communal lounge, kitchen, office, laundry and toilet
facilities. The laundry is used regularly but the rest of the communal facilities are not well
used and the scheme does not work well as a sheltered housing scheme. Removal of the
communal laundry facility could be addressed by WHQS kitchen improvement works to
enable tenants to have laundry facilities in their own homes if there is adequate drainage
capacity for the site, which is yet to be determined.

There are no current void properties at this scheme, however demand is routinely low and the
current waiting list is exhausted.

This scheme would suit reclassification from sheltered housing to designated older persons’
accommodation but could also accommodate general needs households. Full consultation
and information sharing would be required for tenants to advise them of a review of their
services, such as access to housing support from floating support services when required
rather than a Sheltered Housing Officer, impact on service charges and changing to a
dispersed alarm service. Service charges would be significantly reduced for tenants if
reclassification is approved.

Reclassification could result in increased demand for other sheltered housing schemes in the
locality.

Building Consultancy has undertaken a feasibility study and confirms that the ground floor of
the communal building could be converted into another flat with 2 possible options provided at
the following estimated cost:

e Option 1: 2 bed 4 person flat with shower room and bathroom - £93,000
e Option 2: 3 bed 6 person flat with bathroom - £90,000

Due to their size and their location facing the main road on the edge of the scheme, if the
reclassification of the scheme and the conversion work to the communal area is approved,
these two properties would be suitable for general needs family accommodation.

TREDEGAR COURT, CROSSKEYS - EXTRA CARE

Tredegar Court is currently classified as an extra care scheme with 25 under one roof flats
however it no longer provides a full extra care service having had the on site 24 hour carer
assistance removed by Social Services from the scheme in 2010. It was a sheltered housing
scheme before being refurbished as an extra care scheme in 2004. There are also 12 outside
flats in Tredegar Street which were decommissioned from the extra care scheme in 2010 and
are now regarded as sheltered housing stock but are still subject to the full service charges of
the extra care scheme as they have full access to the services.

Despite the full care service being withdrawn, the scheme still has additional services over
and above those provided in a traditional sheltered housing scheme. The facility provides 1
meal a day to the tenants in Tredegar Court as a mandatory requirement of the tenancy
arrangements, although not all tenants routinely take their meals. The tenants in the Tredegar
Street flats still have the option to purchase a meal but on a daily basis by paying up front
separately when ordered but there is only a limited take up of this service. There is also a full
time Sheltered Housing Officer on site Monday to Friday serving both the scheme and the
outside flats, whereas sheltered schemes have part time Sheltered Housing Officer cover.

The scheme has a large commercial kitchen facility which is managed by Catering Services
with Housing recharged in full for the provision of the facility. This cost is service charged to
the tenants, however, the meal service is currently heavily subsidised by Housing and this is
not cost effective for the future. For 2017/18, the meal service expenditure totalled
£59,544.32 and income totalled £35,821.19, equating to a deficit of £23,723.13.

Page 35



4.33

4.34

4.35

4.36

4.37

4.38

4.39

4.40

4.41

There are currently 7 void properties at this scheme, 6 in the main building and 1 outside flat.
Demand is low and the assessment of suitable tenants for the under one roof element is
confusing for applicants and Officers. Housing are frequently requested to accept applicants
who have high level extra care needs but the scheme is now unable to provide this level of
care. Applicants with a lesser need do not have care packages but the current allocations
process requires that a new tenant has to have a care package in place. Therefore this is
proving to be contradictory and difficult to assess.

The communal facilities, communal bathroom, and hairdressers have not been well used for
some years. The shop facility closed after a short period of time of the extra care facilities
being introduced due to lack of demand.

A recent meeting has taken place with the Assistant Manager of Adult Social Services and the
Care Manager to discuss the future of the extra care classification. It was agreed that in
essence the scheme is no longer an extra care facility and does not lend itself to provide the
extra care option for the future. The building is now deemed to be unsuitable for extra care
facilities and this was one of the reasons why the full carer service was withdrawn.
Discussions with Adult Social Services have not resulted in proposals for alternative uses of
the scheme.

If the extra care title assigned to this scheme is removed and it is returned to a standard
sheltered housing facility with the same allocations approach as sheltered housing, this
should help to alleviate the low demand issues at this scheme.

Removal of the extra care title would enable closure of the kitchen and facilitate reduced costs
to the tenants and remove the need for the significant subsidy. Alternative meal provisions
would be offered, i.e. Meals Direct (from £3.10 per two course meal), Wiltshire Farm (from
£2.99 per meal), for those who would require it.

When the service charge review was undertaken in 2017, Tredegar Court was excluded from
the review due pending this proposal. If a decision is made to retain the kitchen provision, a
review of the service charges to the tenants would be required to cover the costs currently
heavily subsidised by the Council and this is likely to make the scheme unaffordable for
tenants in the future.

Should this scheme be reclassified to sheltered housing, the existing care arrangements
which have been put in place would continue unchanged for each individual tenant. The
provision would be the same as is offered to persons receiving care in the community or in
other sheltered housing schemes. Any tenant requiring referral for assessment for relocation
to an alternative true extra care scheme would receive assistance and support to instigate
this.

It is proposed that the existing Sheltered Housing Officer would continue full time at the
scheme to support tenants with the proposed transition of services for a maximum period of
12 months at which time the level of cover would come into line with other sheltered housing
schemes which would be reflected in the revised service charges to the tenants of the
scheme.

FULL DECOMMISSIONING OF PARTLY DECOMMISSIONED SCHEMES

As part of the previous sheltered housing review in 2013, four schemes in the Caerphilly
Basin namely Nantddu, Waunfach, Claude Road (Denscombe), and Grange Close, were
partly decommissioned, a total of 133 units. They continue to receive the hard wired alarm
service and housing management support e.g. assistance with TV licencing for those in
receipt of protected rights, at a weekly charge of £5.62. A floating support service is also
provided at a set charge of £4.69 per week. It was agreed at the time that the floating support
service is not time limited on demand housing related service, with regular pullcord checks.

Page 36



4.42

4.43

4.44

The sheltered housing service continues to fund annual maintenance costs for Tunstall hard
wired alarm equipment at these locations. The standard maintenance contracts for all
schemes total £3,513.67 per annum with the Council also funding any additional costs for
work not covered by the contract. In the past 18 months there have been significant external
cabling issues which have not been covered by the contract. It is anticipated this will continue
to be a service delivery problem in future years due to the age and condition of the cabling at
the sites.

It is proposed that consideration now be given to fully decommissioning these partially
decommissioned units. To allow for full decommissioning, tenants would receive a face to
face visit as part of the consultation process. Each tenant would receive the option of a
pendant dispersed alarm to replace the hard wired alarm system. Future support for the
dispersed alarm service would be through the Caerphilly Careline service. Tenancy
management issues would continue to be directed through their local housing office. Each
tenant would continue to have the option of referral to the Floating Support Service for short
term housing related support as currently offered to all other clients. The Floating Support
Service would continue to assist with the TV Licencing for the remaining tenants on protected
rights until there is a change in tenancy or the tenants attain the age of 75.

Initial full decommissioning of these schemes would incur costs to the Council associated with
the installation of the dispersed alarm system and the provision of a pendant to each tenant
requesting one. Access to a telephone line would also be required. Decommissioning would
eliminate the maintenance and repair costs to the Council for the hard wired alarm system
and the possibility of any future associated service charges to tenants. Pullcord checks would
no longer be required and the pullcords would be removed as part of the full decommissioning
work. A quarterly standard charge of £57.59 (discounted if on housing benefit to £38.09)
would apply to tenants if they were to receive the dispersed alarm service, however they
would be able to opt out of this service if they wished. Currently they are not able to opt out
and have to pay an alarm charge.

4.45 When the service charge review was undertaken in 2017, these schemes were excluded from

4.46

the review due to this pending proposal. If full decommissioning does not take place, there
would have to be a review of the charges imposed for floating support, maintenance charges,
and other associated services, which could result in the properties becoming unaffordable for
tenants in the future.

RECLASSIFICATION OF EXISTING OLDER PERSONS HOUSING

Members will be aware that there is a significant unmet need for general needs
accommodation for single people throughout most of the County Borough (LHMA, 2015). The
Council’s current stock of single person accommodation is limited in number and is largely
concentrated in a small number of our communities, rather than dispersed across the County
Borough. This means that there is very little choice and in order for single persons to be
housed the majority are routinely required to leave their own communities and associated
support networks.

4.47 These single people often find it extremely difficult to settle and become part of the community

in which they find themselves, where there also tend to be significant numbers of other single
people in a similar situation. With large numbers being placed in the same community, this
can also lead to community concerns and allegations of anti-social behaviour, thereby
affecting the reputation of the area and having a negative impact on future demand for
properties. The individual's situation is often compounded by the enforced loss of local
support networks, which may include family members and community members in addition to
formal service provisions. This trend has a detrimental impact on community sustainability and
cohesion in both the former and new communities. It may also impact on family cohesion
including difficulties in individuals sustaining relationships with children, siblings etc. often
leading to isolation and vulnerability, and in many cases failed tenancies and subsequent
homelessness.

Page 37



4.48

4.49

4.50

451

4.52

4.53

4.54

4541

The current Housing register includes 1,383 single person households who want to be housed
by Caerphilly Homes, whilst we have a stock of only 406 single person general needs
properties, of which 86 are two bedroom properties. Lettings policies and affordability issues
preclude single person households from receiving offers of larger accommodation. By
contrast 784 applicants aged 60 or over want to be housed in Caerphilly Homes designhated
older persons’ non sheltered 1 bed accommodation of which we have 872 properties. Many of
these older applicants have also applied and are eligible for 2 bed older persons’ properties of
which we have 1,361.

It is recognised that there is a significant shortage of 1 bed general needs properties within
the County Borough, The impact of welfare reform and Universal Credit are placing increasing
pressure on the Council to provide additional smaller units of general needs accommodation
that are affordable. A failure to do so will result in increased levels of homelessness and
tenancies failing due to financial hardship.

The 2015 Local Housing Market Assessment has identified a significant shortage of general
needs 1 bed accommodation (588 units) and a surplus of older persons and sheltered
accommodation (61 units) across the County Borough. Initial findings from the draft 2017
LHMA indicate that this mismatch continues.

Some designated older persons housing within the county borough is low demand and
undesirable by older persons. This may be due to location, property type or design. Prior to
the introduction of the Common Allocation Policy applicants were able to receive unlimited
offers of accommodation without penalty. This enabled Officers to offer such properties to
eligible applicants in shortlist order until they reached an applicant who would accept the
property. If, as was common, they exhausted the waiting list of older persons for the property
they were able to continue to shortlist in 5 year age bands under 60 until they were successful
in allocating the property. In practice, this resulted in many of these lower demand older
person properties being allocated to applicants under 60. Those older persons that had
refused offers of the accommodation were not disadvantaged in the application process by
refusing this low demand accommodation.

The Common Allocations Policy has introduced a process whereby all applicants are entitled
to receive three offers of accommodation based on the preferences they express on their
application e.g landlord, property type and size, and area. All offers of accommodation that
are made in accordance with the stated preferences which are subsequently refused by the
applicant, without justification, are regarded by the Council as an unreasonable refusal. Upon
three unreasonable refusals an application is suspended for three months. Experience to date
has demonstrated that offers of accommodation that we know to be of low demand by older
persons to these older applicants has impacted on their application as most refusals are
considered to be unreasonable, thereby reducing their likelihood of being rehoused.

Re-classification of these low demand or unsuitable older persons’ properties to general needs
would assist older persons in receiving a successful allocation of a property of their choice
and increase opportunities to house single younger persons across wider communities, and
also support homeless prevention. It is therefore proposed to re-designate the following
properties from older persons to general needs accommodation.

One Bed Houses

Caerphilly Homes manages 24 one bed houses across four communities, all but one of which
is currently designated for older persons:

Lower Row, Rhymney — 1 unit (general needs)
Railway Terrace, West End, Abercarn — 10 units
Central Avenue, Pantside — 10 units

Chatham Place, Machen — 3 units

Page 38



4.54.2

4.55

4551

Demand for this type of accommodation by older persons tends to be low due to the size of
the properties and the design which causes difficulties for those with restricted mobility, often
necessitating adaptations or a future transfer to a more suitable property, causing
inconvenience to the tenant and cost implications to the Council. Of the current tenants in
these 1 bed houses only three were aged 60 or over at sign up, and only nine of the
properties currently have a tenant aged 60 or over. Similar trends can be evidenced for former
tenants in the last five years.

One and Two Bed Flats at Pencoed Avenue, Cefn Fforest

Cefn Fforest is identified within the 2015 Local Housing Market Assessment as a community
with an over supply of older persons’ accommodation and shortage of general needs
accommodation. There are ten 1 bed and five 2 bed flats in Pencoed Avenue currently
designated for older persons, in a location where the stock is predominantly designated for
general needs. Demand for this older persons’ accommodation is low due to its location. None
of the current tenants were aged 60 or over at sign up, with only four aged 50 or over at sign
up. None of the current tenants are aged 60 or over. Similar trends can be evidenced for
former tenants in the last five years.

4.55.2 Acknowledging that a small number (9) of existing tenants in these properties would be eligible

4.55.3

5.1

for older persons’ accommodation, if re-classification were to be approved, appropriate
support would be provided to those tenants to facilitate transfers if they wished to remain in
older persons’ accommodation.

It is recognised that there is the potential opportunity to identify additional accommodation that
would be suitable for re-classification from older persons to general needs use across the
County Borough. It is therefore proposed that Officers be given delegated powers to re-
classify older persons accommodation to general needs, in consultation with the Cabinet
Member using the principles identified above for Pencoed Avenue, when it can be evidenced
that demand for specific blocks of older persons accommodation is low and there is significant
unmet need for general needs accommodation within that community. If the delegated
powers are approved, properties would only be allocated from the general needs list as and
when a property becomes empty. The tenants already in occupation who would meet the
criteria for older persons’ housing would be supported to a move to older persons’
accommodation if so desired, however there would be no enforced moves.

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

This report contributes to the Well-being Goals as set out in Links to Strategy above. It is
consistent with the five ways of working as defined within the sustainable development
principle in the Act in that:

Long Term — improving and future proofing our properties; providing affordable
housing for current and future tenants to meet their needs and aspirations; promoting
independence: providing a fair and transparent service to tenants

Prevention — providing well maintained, safe, warm and secure homes; preventing
disrepair and promoting low maintenance for the future. Reducing dependence on
health and social care. Reducing the requirement to build new housing to meet unmet
needs by reclassification of existing stock.

Integration — improved standards of housing and community environments.
Increasing cohesiveness of communities by ensuring there is a range of appropriate
housing.

Collaboration — joined up working arrangements within in-house teams and cost
effective procurement arrangements

Involvement — tenant meetings, consultation and information updates to obtain the
views of the residents

Page 39



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

7.2

7.3

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

An EIA screening has previously been completed in accordance with the Council's Strategic
Equality Plan and supplementary guidance. No potential for unlawful discrimination and/or low
level or minor negative impact was identified therefore a full EIA has not been carried out to
date It is recognised that further EIA screening may be required in relation to the proposals
prior to the implementation of the recommendations.

The Council recognises the need for older tenants to be supported, wherever possible, in
accommodation that is accessible and supports their rights to independence.

Previous consultation with tenants on the remodelling proposals has not raised any other
equalities related issues.

The proposal supports Strategic Equality Objective 3: Improving Physical Access, Strategic
Equality, Objective 5: Inclusive Engagement and Participation and Strategic Equality
Objective 7: Supporting Age-friendly Communities.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Britannia Court WHQS improvements can be incorporated into the existing WHQS
budget.

Core remodelling works would incur the following provisionally estimated costs with further
costs anticipated for associated environmental improvements and unforeseen work. This
level of investment would still not guarantee future demand:

Ty Melin £1,720,000
Ynyswen £ 820,000
Castle Court £2,445,000
St Marys Court £2,746,250

Waunfawr House £1,174,000

The costs for the development of a replacement scheme in the event of a decision to close 3
of the aforementioned schemes have not yet been established. A comparable new build
alternative for Castle Court however was estimated at £4,513,375 which will give some
indication of the cost involved. This would be subject to a further report however, funding
sources such as Affordable Housing Grant and the Health and Housing fund to deliver an
innovative, combined health and housing project would be investigated. There would also be
the potential to offset some of the cost by disposal of one or more of the sites. Considering a
new build replacement option for 3 of the schemes will ensure future proofing and viability of
the scheme for the coming years. A modernised approach could be considered which would
be more appealing and beneficial to current and future tenants, meeting needs and
aspirations. If we were to retain the 3 schemes and remodel or improve them, it is anticipated
that we will still be in the same position in a few years time in considering their future due to
their dated facilities, the age of the buildings and limitations on the modernisation options
available to us.

7.4  The full cost of the remodelling proposals, if agreed, is approximately £8.9m plus a contingency

7.5

of 10%. The proposed Asset Management Strategy identifies an allocation of £2m per year for
remodelling (E10million for 5 years). If a decision is taken to incorporate all six schemes back
into the current WHQS programme the cost is £5.795m which would need to be built into the
programme, thereby impacting on borrowing levels.

The proposals for Tredegar Court and Hafod Y Bryn would potentially reduce the service
charges for tenants. Hafod Y Bryn improvements would provide an additional unit for rental
income.

Page 40



7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

Re-classification of Tredegar Court would remove the current requirement for the HRA to
subsidise the kitchen service. It would also result in less income for the Catering Service
however some of this could be offset with the take up of alternative meal provisions being
provided by the Catering Service through Meals on Wheels.

The full decommissioning of the partly decommissioned schemes would result in a saving on
the annual Tunstall contract for repairs and maintenance and any charges for work not
covered by the contract. It would also prevent the requirement to service charge tenants in
the future.

The rent loss for low demand units would reduce if schemes are remodelled however the
consequential reduction in units would result in reduced rental income for these schemes. In
addition, service charges would increase for the tenants as the costs would be spread across
fewer tenants.

Reclassification of existing older persons stock would not have any detrimental financial
implications, there would be a saving on management costs and service charges to tenants
would be reduced if services are removed or varied.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

It is not anticipated that there would be any personnel implications at this time for the Older
Persons Housing service.

Existing personnel would be required to support tenants that may be decanted as part of the
remodelling process.

Consultation exercises would be required and subject to the availability of adequate
resources, would be undertaken by existing personnel.

If any remodelling is approved, it is anticipated the work would be undertaken between 2020
and 2025 and could potentially be carried out by the in-house workforce to provide continuity
for those employees post achievement of WHQS in 2020.

CONSULTATIONS

This report reflects the views of the consultees.

All local ward councillors for each of the communities with schemes affected by the
remodelling proposals were invited to attend separate meetings to discuss, in detail, the
outcome of the feasibility studies, reasons and recommendations for each scheme. Those
councillors able to attend were supportive of the report and the preferred options being
recommended. All councillors unable to attend these meetings were consulted in writing and
invited to discuss any queries or concerns.

One ward councillor disagreed that there will be no guarantee of future demand for some of the
six schemes considered for remodelling. The councillor also suggested the refurbishment of
the existing building at Ty Darran for accommodating residents temporarily displaced by
remodelling proposals however it is not anticipated that there will be any requirement to
decant large numbers of residents in that locality. There is, therefore, no intention for Housing
to seek to refurbish the existing building on the Ty Darran site to facilitate any decanting and
any that may be required will be manged utilising existing stock.

The local ward councillors for each of the communities affected by reclassification and
decommissioning proposals were consulted in writing in relation to proposals for properties in

Page 41



9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

9.11

10.

10.1

10.1.1

their communities and invited to discuss any queries or concerns direct with officers. Those
who responded to the consultation were supportive of the report proposals.

Britannia Court tenants will be informed of the proposal to undertake WHQS work as part of
the sheltered housing programme of work if approved.

The sheltered housing tenants in the schemes identified for remodelling have previously been
consulted on the principles of remodelling. A further update to tenants and follow up
consultation will be provided following the outcome of this report.

Tenants in the Hafod Y Bryn sheltered housing scheme will be consulted and advised on
future proposals if the recommendations are supported.

Tenants in Tredegar Court will be consulted and advised on options for future meal provisions
and changes to services and future charges if the recommendation is supported. If not
supported tenants in Tredegar Court will be consulted on a review of their service charges.

The tenants in the 4 partly decommissioned schemes will be consulted and advised on future
proposals if approved. Face to face visits would be required to provide advice, progress the
full decommissioning and install a fully dispersed alarm service.

The reclassification of older persons housing stock detailed in this report would not require
consultation but face to face meetings would be held with those tenants affected to explain the
reasoning behind the decision and to establish their intentions and support requirements.

There would be a legal requirement to serve a variation of tenancy notice to tenants where
services are being removed or varied.

RECOMMENDATIONS

To consider the following proposed options for each scheme and provide comments for
consideration by the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee and thereafter Cabinet:

BRITANNIA COURT

(@) Retain and incorporate the current scheme into the current WHQS programme of work —
estimated cost of £15k per unit (30 units) plus £500,000 for communal upgrades,
totalling £900,000 for internal improvements only.

(b) Retain and incorporate into the current WHQS programme of work, and decommission
the external flat blocks from the scheme if feasible following further investigatory work
and consultation with existing tenants — estimated cost as above plus the provision of
dispersed alarms (8 units @ approx. £40 each) for the blocks of flats, totalling £900,320

Item (b) above would be the Officers preferred option for this scheme.

10.1.2 TY MELIN

(@) Proceed with the WHQS partially compliant remodelling to provide 23 units at the
aforementioned cost - £1,720,000.

(b) Retain and incorporate into the current WHQS programme of work without remodelling —
estimated cost of £15k per unit (33 units) plus £500,000 for communal upgrades,
totalling £945,000 for internal improvements only

(c) Agree to a programmed closure of the scheme and investigation of options for disposal
or redevelopment of site

Page 42



Item (a) above would be the Officers preferred option for this scheme.

10.1.3 YNYSWEN

@)

(b)

(©)

Proceed with the partially WHQS compliant remodelling to provide 13 units at the
aforementioned cost - £820,000.

Retain and incorporate into the current WHQS programme of work without remodelling —
estimated cost of £15k per unit (19 units) plus £500,000 for communal upgrades,
totalling £785,000 for internal improvements only.

Agree to a programmed closure of the scheme and investigation of options for disposal
or redevelopment of site

Item (a) above would be the Officers preferred option for this scheme.

10.1.4 CASTLE COURT

@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

()

Proceed with the fully WHQS compliant remodelling to provide 44 units (29 in main
block) at the aforementioned cost - £2,445,000.

Proceed with the fully WHQS compliant remodelling at the aforementioned cost, and
decommission the external flat blocks from the scheme if feasible following further
investigatory work— estimated cost as above plus the provision of dispersed alarms (15
units @ approx. £40 each) for the blocks of flats, totalling £2,445,600.

Retain and incorporate into the current WHQS programme of work without remodelling—
estimated cost of £15k per unit (56 units) plus £500,000 for communal upgrades,
totalling £1,340,000 for internal improvements only

Retain and incorporate into the current WHQS programme of work without remodelling,
and decommission the external flat blocks from the scheme if feasible following further
investigatory work— estimated cost as above plus the provision of dispersed alarms (15
units @ approx. £40 each) for the blocks of flats, totalling £1,340,600

Agree to a programmed closure for the scheme and investigation of options for disposal
or redevelopment of site

Agree to a programmed closure for the scheme for a replacement new build alternative
as a replacement for 3 schemes and investigation of options for disposal or
redevelopment of site — estimated new build cost £4,513,375

Item (f) above would be the Officers preferred option for this scheme.

10.1.5 ST MARYS COURT

@)

(b)

(©)

Proceed with the fully WHQS compliant remodelling to provide 25 units at the
aforementioned cost - £2,746,250.

Retain and incorporate into the current WHQS programme of work without remodelling —
estimated cost of £15k per unit (33 units) plus £500,000 for communal upgrades,
totalling £995,000.

Agree to a programmed closure for the scheme and investigation of options for disposal
or redevelopment of site.

Page 43



10.1.6

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

11.

111

11.2

11.3

11.4

115

(d) Agree to a programmed closure for the scheme for a replacement new build alternative
as a replacement for 3 schemes and investigation of options for disposal or
redevelopment of site — estimated new build cost £4,513,375

Item (d) above would be the Officers preferred option for this scheme.
WAUNFAWR HOUSE

(@) Proceed with the partially WHQS compliant remodelling to provide 16 units at the
aforementioned cost - £1,174,000.

(b) Retain and incorporate into the current WHQS programme of work without remodelling—
estimated cost of £15k per unit (22 units) plus £500,000 for communal upgrades,
totalling £830,000.

(c) Agree to a programmed closure for the scheme and investigate options for disposal or a
redevelopment site.

(d) Agree to a programmed closure for the scheme for a replacement new build alternative
as a replacement for 3 schemes and investigation of options for disposal or
redevelopment of site— estimated new build cost £4,513,375.

Item (d) above would be the Officers preferred option for this scheme.

To agree to the reclassification of the Hafod Y Bryn Sheltered Housing Scheme from
Sheltered Housing to designated general needs and older persons housing, subject to
consultation and technical feasibility and to convert communal facilities into a ground floor 3
bed flat.

To agree to the removal of the extra care classification from Tredegar Court thereby returning
it to a sheltered housing scheme.

To agree to the full decommissioning of the 4 partly decommissioned schemes — estimated
cost of providing dispersed alarm to 133 units £5,320 if required by the tenants.

To agree to the reclassification of older persons housing stock to general needs use at the
specific locations mentioned within this report.

To agree to the delegated powers for Officers to re-classify older persons’ accommodation to

general needs using the principles identified in this report, in consultation with the Cabinet
Member for Homes and Places.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

To ensure the future viability of sheltered housing and older persons’ accommodation whilst
meeting the needs and aspirations of current and future tenants.

To rationalise the numbers of sheltered housing units in the Risca/Crosskeys locality.

To address the low demand issues in sheltered housing and some older persons’
accommodation.

To enable the authority to meet current and future housing demand for single persons general
needs housing accommodation and improve the distribution of single persons housing across
the County Borough.

To reduce the ongoing financial liability to the Council in relation to low demand, the provision
of associated services and the consequential impact of these on tenants.

Page 44



12. STATUTORY POWER

12.1 Housing Act 1985
12.2 Landlord & Tenant Act 1985

Authors:

Consultees:

Shaun Couzens, Chief Housing Officer

(Tel: 01443 864208/01443 811406, Email: couzes@caerphilly.gov.uk)
Fiona Wilkins, Public Sector Housing Manager

(Tel: 01443 811407, Email: wilkife @caerphilly.gov.uk)

Angela Hiscox, Older Persons Housing Manager

(Tel: 01443 8111427, Email: hiscoa@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Dave Street, Director of Social Services and Housing
Councillor David Poole, Leader of the Council
Councillor Lisa Phipps, Cabinet Member for Homes and Places
Councillor Julian Simmonds

Councillor Mike Adams

Councillor Colin Gordon

Councillor Gez Kirby

Councillor Bob Owen

Councillor Ross Whiting

Councillor Carl Thomas

Councillor Mike Davies

Councillor Nigel George

Councillor Philippa Leonard

Councillor Arianna Passmore

Councillor Colin Elsbury

Councillor James Fussell

Councillor Steve Kent

Councillor Phil Bevan

Councillor Shayne Cook

Councillor James Pritchard

Councillor Steve Skivens

Councillor Jon Scriven

Councillor Margaret Sargent

Councillor Lindsay Whittle

Councillor Andrew Whitcombe

Councillor Denver Preece

Councillor Adrian Hussey

Councillor Leeroy Jeremiah

Councillor Gary Johnston

Councillor Liz Aldworth

Councillor June Gale

Councillor Derek Havard

Councillor Graham Simmonds

Councillor Tom Williams

Stephen R Harris, Section 151 Officer

Nicole Scammel, Head of Corporate Finance
Lesley Allen, Principal Accountant

Suzanne Cousins, Principal Housing officer
Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer, Equalities and Welsh Language
Todd Rawson, Solicitor

Kevin Fortey, Housing Development Officer
Sandra Isaacs, Rents Manager

Mandy Betts, Tenant and Community Involvement Manager
Debbie Bishop, Area Housing Manager

Julie Reynolds, Area Housing Manager

Page 45


mailto:couzes@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:wilkife@caerphilly.gov.uk
mailto:hiscoa@caerphilly.gov.uk

Karen James, Neighbourhood Housing Manager

Tracy Lundy, Neighbourhood Housing Manager

Alyson Colman, Senior Sheltered Housing Team Leader
Claire Davies, Interim Private Sector Housing Manager
Mark Jennings, Housing Strategy Officer

Page 46



Agenda Item 9

B
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
> 4

POLICY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
6TH SEPTEMBER 2018

SUBJECT: PROPOSALS FOR INCREASING COUNCIL HOUSING SUPPLY
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE
SERVICES

1.1 The attached report will be presented to the Caerphilly Homes Task Group on 4th September
2018.

1.2 The views expressed at the meeting and the recommendations of the Caerphilly Homes Task
Group will be reported verbally to the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee.

1.3 Members are asked to consider the contents of the report and make a recommendation to
Cabinet.

Author: R. Barrett, Committee Services Officer, Ext. 4245

Appendices:
Appendix Report to Caerphilly Homes Task Group on 4th September 2018 - Agenda Item 8

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



A Y
CAERPHILLY APPENDIX

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWIRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

CAERPHILLY HOMES TASK GROUP - 4TH SEPTEMBER 2018

SUBJECT: PROPOSALS FOR INCREASING COUNCIL HOUSING SUPPLY

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR SOCIAL SERVICES AND HOUSING

11

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is to advise Members of proposals for increasing the supply
of council housing and to outline principles of development mechanisms and options for
delivery.

Members are requested to consider the information within the report and provide views
on the options to enable officers to further develop proposals resulting in a more
detailed report to be brought forward for building new Council homes on specific sites,
prior to consideration by the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee and thereafter
Cabinet.

The report also includes proposals on other options which could be considered for
increasing the supply of Council homes.

LINKS TO STRATEGY

The contents of this report link to the following key strategic objectives:

o “Encourage the development and maintenance of high quality, well designed and
efficient, sustainable homes and environments which can meet all needs.”
(Community Strategy: Living Environment — Objective 1)

o “Ensure an adequate and appropriate range of housing sites are available across
the County Borough in the most suitable locations to meet the housing
requirements of all sections of the population” (Local Development Plan —
Objective 9)

o There is a need to increase the number of affordable homes for purchase or rent
(Improving Lives and Communities — Homes in Wales — April 2010)

o Anti-Poverty Strategy CCBC which sets out a range of priorities to tackle poverty
in the borough

o The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015 contains 7 wellbeing goals. When
making decisions the act requires public bodies in Wales to take into account the
impact they could have on people living their lives in the future:

The proposal contributes to the following Well-being Goals within the Well-being of
Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015:
o A sustainable Wales
A prosperous Wales
A healthier Wales
A more equal Wales
A Wales of cohesive communities

Page 49

O
@)
@)
O



2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

The Council’'s Corporate Plan 2018 — 2023 and more specifically Wellbeing Objective 3,
address the supply, condition and sustainability of homes throughout the county
borough and provide advice, assistance or support to help improve people’s health and
wellbeing.

THE REPORT
Housing Need

The Council’s housing stock has been significantly depleted over the years as a result of
the Right to Buy process and currently there are approximately 4,300 active applicants
on the Common Housing Register seeking a transfer or the allocation of a home.

The following table provides a breakdown of these applicants by housing category,
which clearly highlights that there is a need for an increase in general accommodation
and in particular, smaller units of accommodation for single persons.

OAP - OAP - OAP -
- General | Not Selected Selected

Household Composition Needs | selected Sheltered Sheltered Total

sheltered | and OAP Only
Adult (single) 1386 342 353 52 | 2133
Adult (single) with access 81 2 83
Adult or couple plus 1 other 539 70 23 632
Adult or couple plus 2 other 323 10 333
Adult or couple plus 3 other 146 2 148
Adult or couple plus 4 or more other 75 1 76
Adult or couple with child expected 73 73
Couple with access 9 1 1 11
Couple with no children 247 321 218 21 807
NULL 1 1
Grant Total 2880 749 595 73| 4297

The number of homelessness presentations to our offices in Caerphilly have increased
threefold over the last 2 years and whilst to date we have been very successful in
preventing homelessness in many cases, it is apparent that the majority of presentations
have been from single persons which supports the evidence that there is a lack of
suitable smaller units of accommodation available in the county borough.

Work is nearing completion on our Local Housing Market Assessment and data
gathered suggests that an additional 282 units of affordable housing are required per
annum to meet demand and also recognises that there is a particular demand for single
person accommodation.

This information can be broken down as follows:-

169 social rented units.
113 intermediate units, e.g. intermediate rent and low cost home ownership.

The CCBC Local Development Plan up to 2021, identifies an affordable housing target
of 964 units to be delivered through the planning system using Section 106 Agreements
on qualifying sites. The delivery of affordable housing through the planning system will
make a contribution towards meeting housing need.

As of the 2017 Annual Monitoring Report, 251 affordable units had been built since the
start of the plan period, which is less than a third of the overall target. A detailed report

Page 50




3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

on “Affordable Homes in New Developments” was submitted and considered by Policy
and Resources Scrutiny Committee on the 10" April 2018.

Whilst the council has worked very successfully with its Housing Association partners to
deliver new affordable housing, there has been no new council housing development
mainly due to funding limitations. However, in order to maximise opportunities to
contribute to Welsh Government’s ambition to build 20,000 additional affordable homes
in Wales by 2020, new funding proposals have been made available by WG and the
Housing Business Plan indicates that the Housing Revenue Account could support new
developments.

Welsh Government has recently announced that the Housing Finance Grant programme
will be extended to Local Authorities to support opportunities for new build Council
housing. This is known as Affordable Housing Grant (AHG) (Formerly part of Housing
Finance Grant Phase 2). The previous HFG grant only allowed Housing Associations to
access the grant.

Where such developments can be undertaken without the authority incurring any land
purchase costs e.g. HRA owned land, then the capital cost of the scheme considered for
AHG will be reduced by 20%. The proposals contained within Table 1 of this report only
includes schemes for development on HRA owned land, therefore the figures quoted
have been reduced accordingly. WG have also indicated that the AHG could also be
utilised to purchase existing properties, e.g. empty homes, to support these being
brought back into beneficial use.

Affordability

The potential new housing units would form part of the Councils Housing Revenue
Account (HRA) stock allocation and would be managed and maintained under the
statutory ring-fenced account criteria that is followed for all existing council house stock.
It should be noted, however, that the AHG will be paid to the Authority over a 30 year
period and so the Authority needs to secure 100% of the capital costs to facilitate the
commencement of any development. The total cost of any borrowing will need to be
incorporated within the Housing Business Plan which must remain financially viable and
must also be included within the current borrowing cap limits recently imposed on the
HRA. In order to comply with the funding criteria, all developments must be approved by
WG before March 2020. WG are currently considering extending borrowing cap levels
to support new developments, but at the time of writing this report no decision has been
made.

The latest business plan submitted to Welsh Government suggests that there is scope
within the HRA borrowing cap to consider new build and/or acquisition options as well
as fund the WHQS programme.

The HRA borrowing cap is £180m which includes pre-existing historical debt and the
debt for the recent subsidy buy out. The borrowing for WHQS currently allows for some
£34m (19%) flexibility before the cap is breached, based on projections to the end of the
WHQS programme in 2020. Also the full cost of any development is taken against our
borrowing limits even though only 42% of the build cost is the actual cost to the HRA.

In order to deliver the full programme identified in Table 1, a total investment of
£4,974,500 would be required and is deemed to be affordable within the Business Plan
based on the assumptions made within item 3.18 of this report. However, whilst the
Affordable Housing Grant (AHG) would fund 58% of the build cost, in order to comply
with the grant conditions the schemes would need to commence on site prior to the 31
March, 2019, in order to receive this year’s allocation. Due to the timescales involved,
the requirement for feasibility studies to be undertaken, planning approval to be

Page 51



3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

obtained and a procurement process to appoint a developer, it would not be possible to
access this year’s allocation for new developments.

Caerphilly’s allocation of AHG for 2019/20 is £1,812,867 and it is therefore proposed
that feasibility studies be carried out for all sites listed in Table 1 to determine which of
these could be progressed in line with the grant conditions.

Members must be advised however that the WHQS programme is a moving programme
that evolves daily as condition surveys on our existing stock are carried out. There is a
regular re-profiling review to ensure resources are in place to meet the works required.
Weather conditions and contract performance are also drivers for the success of
completing the programme by the statutory deadline.

HRA balances are fully committed towards the WHQS Programme together with
borrowing requirements of some £45m. Therefore to fund new development and/or
acquisitions further borrowing will be required.

The maximum borrowing of £34m would be affordable by the HRA, but this is based on
the following assumptions which are outside the direct control of officers or members
and therefore they could be subject to change.

o General inflation over the five years up to 2025 has been assumed as 2%. This is
based on the UK government’s current inflation, but could be subject to change due
to the economic climate, Brexit, legislation, etc.

e Rent increases are projected at 3.60% for the 2018/19 financial year in order to
comply with WG rent policy, but this has then been reduced to 3% for each
subsequent year. A new rent policy is awaited from WG so at this time rent
increases are difficult to predict, although there has been a significant reduction in
England.

e A provision for bad debt, including void rent loss, has also been incorporated into
the projections. 6% has been allowed for within 2018/19, but this has been
increased to 7% for the following years, to take into account the implementation of
Universal Credit and increased levels of financial hardship on our customers.

e Staff costs have been assumed to rise by 2% over the next 4 years but increased to
2.5% from year 5.

¢ Maintenance and construction cost increases of 3% have been incorporated into
the business plan, which again is built on historical and current trends. Such
increases are subject to market conditions, legislation and Brexit, so are difficult to
predict with any certainty.

o A future asset management programme has been costed and budgeted for within
the plan, based on historic actual costs and projected future workload. This
includes £14m for our general asset maintenance programme, £2m for remodelling
one of our sheltered housing schemes each year, £1m per annum for carrying out
works of adaptation to our properties based on tenants’ specific needs, £2m to
support energy efficiency initiatives and provide match funding to possible WG
grants and a £1m contingency budget for unforeseen requirements. This equates
to a total allocation of £20m p.a. for the delivery of an asset management
programme from 2020-25. Obviously the above projections are also linked to the
previous assumptions made, so could be subject to change.

In this respect a cautious phased approach is being proposed based on the Business
Plan projections made up to 2025 only. This will hopefully limit the impact of any

Page 52



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

unforeseen changes on our plan. The plan will continue to be reviewed on an annual
basis.

OPTIONS FOR INCREASING COUNCIL HOUSE SUPPLY
Potential Sites for Delivery

A selection of potential development sites are provided in Table 1, but these are subject
to detailed feasibility studies being undertaken to ensure the sites are viable and will be
subject to planning approval. If the sites are supported and feasible, these homes could
be delivered in line with the needs identified within the Council's Local Housing Market
Assessment and the Common Housing Register.

Table 1 — HRA Council New Build Sites prioritised by housing need, land
availability and deliverability.

Site Number Estimated Est_imated

Of Homes | Total AHG Build Cost
Penyrheol — Phase 1 7 £462,260 £797,000
Trecenydd 6 £341,040 £588,000
Penyrheol — Phase 2 15 £900,450 £1,552,500
Risca - Phase | 12 £840,420 £1,449,000
Blackwood 6 £341,040 £588,000
Total 46 £2,885,210 £4,974,500

HRA Purchase Land from General Fund/Open Market

There is the option for the HRA to purchase General Fund or private land at market
value or provide a leasing option with the land providing a revenue income stream for
the General Fund. The leasing model is currently being piloted at the Watford Road site
and has been approved for the Windsor Colliery development, although these leasing
arrangements have been agreed with the Council and a local RSL partner.

Potential development sites have been identified and will be considered in consultation
with the Interim Head of Property, the Cabinet Member for Homes and Places and
relevant ward members, e.g. Ty Darren.

Some sites in the Risca area offer potential to develop a new sheltered housing scheme
rather than progress the remodelling of three existing schemes in Risca. There may
also be the opportunity to work collaboratively with the Health Board and Social
Services on the Ty Darren site which could extend development opportunities. The cost
of a new sheltered scheme is anticipated to be in the region of £6m, which is similar to
the remodelling of the three schemes, however such a proposal could also be supported
by the AHG or alternative grants such as the Innovative Housing Grant, Health and

Housing Programme.
Page 53



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Redevelopment of Existing HRA Sites

In order to meet changing demand and ensure that our housing stock continues to be fit
for purpose, it may be more economical to demolish some of our existing stock and
redevelop the site. Examples include some of our sheltered housing schemes, which is
covered in more detail in a separate report, but may also include other stock such as
blocks of flats, e.g. Lansbury Park. As undertaken with the sheltered housing schemes,
these options would require feasibility studies and separate reports to be submitted on
any proposals.

Section 106 Agreements

There is an option to deliver Council homes through the planning s106 route. This
would mean that private sector developers could be required to transfer homes at the
values contained within the Councils Supplementary Guidance on Affordable Housing.
These homes would be developed without the need for Welsh Government Grant. This
would add to the Council’s existing Social Housing stock. Examples of sites which could
lend themselves to such an option include the former Oakdale school site and the
Pontllanfraith council office site.

A similar approach could also be adopted by agreement with developers whereby the
Council could agree to purchase properties directly from the developer, which may
assist with the financial viability of a scheme. This could be outside of the Section 106
Agreement process and therefore an individual business case would need to be
considered for any potential project.

The benefit of this approach is that there would be no staff resource or procurement
implications. The developer would deliver a pre-determined number of properties based
on our specification requirements and transfer these to the Council at the current values
which are indicated below:-

Discounted Fixed Values for Social Rented Units
Unit Type Type Values
1 Bed 1 Person Flat 48704
1 Bed 2 Person Flat 48723
2 Bed 3 Person Flat 55121
2 Bed 3 Person House 67372
2 Bed 4 Person House 67391
3 Bed 4 Person House 67742
3 Bed 5 Person House 67722
4 Bed 6 Person House 82239
4 Bed 7 Person House 82219
2 Bed 3 Person Bungalow | 69055
3 Bed 5 Person Bungalow | 82239

Acquisition of Existing Properties

The existence of empty properties is a national problem which is often not only a waste
of a much needed resource at a time of increasing housing demand, but can also result
in complaints and problems with anti-social behaviour. There is the potential for the

Page 54



4.10

411

412

413

4.14

4.15

4.16

HRA and AHG to support the purchase of existing private properties, including former
Council owned properties which were sold through the right to buy process. Such
acquisitions should be of a type and location that supports Caerphilly Homes’ ability to
meet housing need and provides value for money in terms of purchase costs and future
maintenance when these assets come into the Council’s housing stock. Currently
demand is for smaller units of accommodation particularly in the mid and south of the
county borough and could encompass commercial premises.

This process may also assist the aim of bringing empty properties within the county
borough, which have willing vendors, back into beneficial use. This will not only assist in
meeting housing demand, increase options for addressing homelessness, but also
improve the street scene and our communities as a whole, as well as regenerating
areas, including our town centres. These areas could be the particular focus of such an
acquisition, but demand is subject to change and such an agreement would need to be
flexible to accommodate such a change.

These suggestions would be subject to acceptable business cases being developed in
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Homes and Places to support such
acquisitions to contribute towards meeting housing need, improving/regenerating
communities and addressing customers’ specific needs, e.g. accessible housing, the
AHG could be used to support such acquisitions.

Specification of Homes

The specification used to design the new Council homes will be key to the success of

the new build programme. The specification of works will affect:

e The build and material costs.

e The cost of heating, lighting and living in the home for future tenants.

¢ The Authority’s ability to attract grant funding from WG to help fund the building of
the new homes.

e Energy efficiency performance and carbon emissions.

e Future ongoing maintenance and repair costs.

¢ New build delivery timescales.

In order to comply with the AHG requirements, the homes will need to be built to a
minimum standard of:

o Design Quality Requirements (Which exceeds WHQS)
e Lifetime Homes

Furthermore, any opportunities to provide digital technology will be maximised in order
to offer “homes for life” thereby positively contributing to the wider health preventative
agenda.

Possibilities for Alternative Funding

There are potential options for the delivery of exemplar projects through WG’s
Innovative Housing Programme. This would depend upon funding becoming available
within the timescales. The allocation of such funding would require a specific project bid
with high specification energy efficient homes having an increased likelihood of success.

WG has issued a health and housing programme and this fund has the potential to
assist with the delivery of a combined housing and health scheme. Both funds are time
limited and linked to the delivery of schemes by March 2021. The funds are available to
assist with the delivery of the 20,000 affordable homes target so a scheme would need
to be developed which attempted to maximise on the funding options currently available.
This source of funding may be particularly applicable to the previous proposal made for

the Risca area.
Page 55



4.17

4.18

5.1

Once a site is identified, a development is likely to take between 18-24 months to
construct. These opportunities could also deliver an innovative, combined health and
housing project for older people/persons within the County Borough.

The development option chosen by the Authority for building new Council homes could
have a significant impact on value for money and maximising the wider benefits of the
investment by keeping the pound(£) local, creating jobs and training opportunities,
promoting sustainable communities and supporting the local supply chain.

PROCUREMENT OPTIONS FOR NEW DEVELOPMENTS
Based on the Council utilising the AHG, the development approach would be subject to
compliance with procurement legislation, but may include one or a combination of five

main options. These are summarised in Table 2 below:

Table 2 — Development Options for AHG

Option Comment

Option 1 Our current zoned Housing Association partners are already

Utilising the services of | position to project manage schemes on behalf of the Council.
a Housing Association | This however would require a procurement process to be
undertaken and confidence that the H.A. has the capacity to
deliver.

experienced in the field of housing development and may be in a

Option 2 Specialist house building design, project management
developers would be invited to tender for the schemes on the
Open Market Approach | open market.

secure a contractor, but resources would be required to develop
an initial project specification.

This appointment process would need to be repeated for each

of smaller sites could support the use of Small/Medium
Enterprises (SME’s).

Allocations for the new homes would be via the Common
Housing Register.

As part of the social inclusion clause within the contract, the
successful contractor could deliver a training programme for
apprenticeships as well as permanent job opportunities.
Apprenticeship transfer option.

The procurement process would take between 9 to 12 months to

scheme unless a specific framework was created. Development

Option 3 The Authority would need to establish a new in-house design

and project management and building team. Whilst we have an
Creating an in-house experienced Building Consultancy section, this Authority has
Council House Building | never built Council homes and consequently currently lacks
Team expertise/resources in the delivery of new build housing.

The funding is time limited and there is no indication of future

Page 56




5.2

5.3

funding being forthcoming, in which case any in-house team
would need to be set up quickly. The establishment of such a
team would require substantial additional resources

The Council houses could be delivered by a project manager
(e.g. Building Consultancy) and monitored by Caerphilly Homes
which would require additional resources. Allocations for the
new homes would be via the Common Housing Register.

Option 4

Arms Length
Development Company

Some Welsh Authorities have already developed ambitious
plans to deliver Council Housing. For example, a model has
been developed by Flintshire County Council called Strategic
Housing and Regeneration Programme (SHARP). An integral
element of SHARP is to support the achievement of the
strategic objectives of Flintshire Council’s regeneration strategy:

“a competitive Flintshire; sustainable communities
and the creation of employment and skills”.

This initiative includes a number of training and apprenticeship
opportunities for local people and, having already built
approximately 40 homes. It should be noted, however, that
although this initiative is an option for consideration by
Caerphilly CBC, its development at Flintshire was extremely
lengthy.

Allocations for the new homes would be via the Common
Housing Register.

Option 5

Existing Frameworks

Investigate possibilities for using existing frameworks to design
and project manage development sites or provide a complete
design and build service. This may not support the use of local

SME'’s.

If members are minded to support the development of new council housing it is
proposed that this be progressed in a phased way due to the impact of financial and
staff resources. Officers therefore recommend that Options 2 and 5 should be the
preferred approach, subject to further detailed reports being submitted on specific
schemes.

Proposals to increase the supply of Council homes within the borough present a unique
opportunity to create opportunities for residents who are currently unemployed or
economically inactive. As a result, a suite of core and non core community benefits will
be included into any contracts that are awarded thereby requiring the contractor, not
only to deliver new homes, but also to create new employment opportunities, work
placements and apprenticeships that, where appropriate align with the Council's WG
funded employment support programmes. The creation of new Council homes would
also present an opportunity for those who are NEET and furthest from the labour market
to participate in a shared apprenticeship programme which could form one element of
the Council’'s apprenticeship scheme currently under development. Additional
community benefits could include the transfer of business acumen between contractors
and local schools, a community fund and local schools / colleges benefiting from an
enhancement to the Careers Wales Business Class programme.

Page 57




6.1

6.2

7.1

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

This proposal contributes to the Well-being Goals as set out in Links to Strategy above.
The proposal is also consistent with the five ways of working set out in the sustainable
development principle, as defined in the Act. The proposal is integrated in that it
contributes to a number of the Well-being goals and supports the objectives of other
stakeholders within the community. Implementation of the scheme exemplifies
collaboration and involvement across organisational boundaries; working together for
the good of our communities in pursuit of shared objectives.

The developments will provide long term investment within communities, protecting (as
far as possible) and improving the local environment and infrastructure for the future.
The developments will bring an emphasis on sustainable construction and Targeted
Recruitment and Training that will enhance employment prospects and skills of local
people, particularly the young and those at a disadvantage, and promote equality of
opportunity. The initiative as a whole will assist in meeting the Welsh Government’'s
target of building 20,000 affordable homes by 2020, thereby preventing problems
associated with the lack of affordable housing from escalating.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

An EIA screening has been completed in accordance with the Council’s Strategic
Equality Plan and supplementary guidance. No potential for unlawful discrimination
and/or low level or minor negative impact has been identified; therefore a full EIA has
not been carried out.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

To utilise the AHG funding, the total amount required for any development/acquisition
must be made available from the HRA/borrowing as the total capital cost. Housing will
then receive a revenue contribution from W.G. to fund the borrowing which will be paid
annually over a 30 year period. Members will be aware of the Councils priority to
achieve the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) by 2020 and this must remain the
priority regardless of new initiatives that could divert financial resource away from the
WHQS programme.

Whilst WG have made an allocation of AHG available to authorities this financial year,
CCBC like many other authorities, are not in a position to meet the grant conditions for
new developments within 2018/19.

The Housing Business Plan up to 2025 has been populated using current rates, plus
inflation for each year and based on the proposed asset management delivery plan.
This includes anticipated expenditure per annum on statutory maintenance, reactive
repairs, asset maintenance programme, remodelling sheltered schemes, works of
adaptation and energy improvement works.

The asset management strategy assumes the completion of the WHQS programme by
2020 and sets out proposals for ensuring the standard is maintained thereafter. The
projections made within the Business Plan will be subject to the strategy being approved
as proposed, but if any changes are made to the strategy, the Business Plan will need
to be reviewed and updated accordingly.

Prudent measures at this time may be to tackle a small number of new build projects

that will not greatly impact on the borrowing cap flexibility or affect our ability to achieve
the WHQS programme. This will also give the Council an opportunity to test the new

Page 58



8.6

9.1

10.

10.1

11.

12.

12.1

12.2

grant while it is in its infancy, develop the required contact arrangements for delivery
and undertake detailed feasibility studies on specific sites.

At the time of writing this report WG are also currently reviewing the borrowing cap

limitations and it is possible that the cap could be increased for those authorities
committed to developing new homes.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Currently there is insufficient resource capacity within Caerphilly Homes to progress the
development of new Council homes. The resources required would depend on the
preferred option chosen from Table 2 for the development of schemes.
CONSULTATIONS

The views of consultees have been included within the report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members consider the following and provide comments for consideration by the
Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee and thereafter Cabinet :-

(1) Agree to the principle of building new council homes and access the AHG in full or in
part.

(2) Agree the HRA sites to progress with detailed viability studies and agree the
principle of identifying and pursuing suitable General Fund or open market sites for
the development of affordable housing.

(3) Agree to the transfer and purchase of new homes through Section 106 agreements
where there is an identified housing need and associated business case.

(4) Agree to the selective acquisition of existing properties to support housing need and
subject to value for money being demonstrated, as set out in item 4.7 and 4.8 with

individual acquisitions being progressed in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Homes and Places.

(5) Agree to a review of resources to support the preferred approach.
(6) Consider the report and the delivery options outlined and provide guidance on the
officers’ preferred Options 2 and 5 with the aim of the Council accessing AHG and

delivering new council homes within the stated timeframes, i.e. 2019/20.

(7) Agree to the submission of future reports for approval providing more detail on any
viable development sites for new Council home provision.
REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

To utilise the AHG funding that has been made available by Welsh Government by 2020
and assist Welsh Government to achieve 20,000 homes.

To increase the supply of Council homes that meet with the needs identified within the
Council's Local Housing Market Assessment and Common Housing Register.

Page 59



13.

STATUTORY POWER

Section 9, Housing Act 1985.

Author: Shaun Couzens, Chief Housing Officer
(Tel: 01443 864208/01443 861407, Email: couzes@caerphilly.gov.uk )

Consultees: ClIr Lisa Phipps Cabinet Member for Homes and Places
Christina Harrhy Interim Chief Executive
Dave Street Corporate Director of Social Services & Housing
Stephen Harris Interim Head of Corporate Finance
Lisa Lane Interim Monitoring Officer
Fiona Wilkins Public Sector Housing Manager
Claire Davies Interim Private Sector Housing Manager
Kevin Fortey Housing Development Officer
Rhian Kyte Head of Regeneration & Planning
Tim Stephens Development Control Manager

Appendices: Appendix 1 — Business Plan Summary
Appendix 2 — Business Plan Assumptions

Page 60


mailto:couzes@caerphilly.gov.uk

STyt
YT €20T
£€Cceoe
¢C'1eoc
12°020C
0T'610C
61°810C

Jea g

— NN <t n O~

Ied X

61/810T NV'1d SSANISNI HONISNOH
[Puno) ysnouog Ljuno) Aqpydase))

000°0C €69°C1 0 LYE'L 0 0 000°0¢ 0 0 0000 0

000°02 £€59°CI 0 LYE'L 0 0 000°0¢ 0 0 000°0C 0

000°0T €69°C1 0 LYE'L 0 0 000°0¢ 0 0 000°0C 0

000°0¢ £S9°CI 0 LYE'L 0 0 000°0¢ 0 0 0000C 0

000°0¢ €59°CI1 0 LYEL 0 0 000°0C 0 0 000°0C 0

CL6'9Y L9l 0 LYEL 0 €06°CC CLO9Y 0 0 L6y 0

108°6¢ €L8°9C 0 LYE'L 188 00L°02 108°G¢S 0 0 108°SS 0
000°3F 000°3F 000'F 000°F 0003 000°F 000" 000°F 000°F 000°F 000°%F

3uoueur]y  ODOY unoddYy PPO  s1deoay  Summoniog amipuadxyg  19y10 sjuow wrely  saredoy
e sairedoy a1y [e10] oroxdwy pauuerg dnyoe)

[ Suueury J [ samyrpuadxy |

sunueuly syudwasoadw pue sareday Jolep
| Xipuaddy

Page 61



%V
%CT
%1T

%61

%0¢€

%6¢€

%LE
% f1oede)

Buimoutiog

'SOHM 133w 01 pa1inbas buimo.ioq fo [9A3] 3y} pup ubjd Ssauisng ay3 uj suoidwnsso ay) uo uapuadap si A1rodod buimo.iog

v9v'L0L Ty
8LT'V06°6€
S88'ev0’LE
9T1'STTVE
LTTVISYS
LTELLEOL
98799029

Koeden

Buimouiog

L609S€°LET
€8T'6STOVT
9/9'6TO'EVT
SYv'8€6°SPT
vEV'6rS'seT
v€2'989'60T
SLO'L66°CTT

40

V¥YH Buiso|p

981°€08°C
76€°098°C
69L°816°C
686°0TS‘C
008'9€8'v
Tr8°0TE e
I8V PIS‘E -
sjuswieday
194310
pue dyiN

0000062t
000°00£°0t

Buimouilog
M3N

€87'6STOVT
9L9°6T0'EVT
SYY'8€6'SYT
rev'6vS'STT
¥€2'989'60T
SL0°L66°CTT
995 TIS9TT

¥40

VYH Buluado

€7/720T
ce/1eoe
12/020¢
02/610¢
6T/810C
8T/LT0T
L1/9T0C

N N < N

T
1sedalo4

psupny

Page 62

| 195°€90°081L 3

:f10eden mEBotoE

6L/8L02
ATIIHdY3IVD

QENEEN\Q ssauisng v&H



LL0'TL6'9Y  2S6°008°SS
6€9'88S°0T  €£0°950CT
000°00S°C SS0'8YL‘T
000°00S 000°00S
000°000°T 000°000°'T
000008 000008
000°009°‘€ 000°009°€
6€9'881°C 8T0‘80%‘E
8EV'E8E9E  6/8VYLEY
vv0'L6v'YT 9697996
¥6€988'TT  €8T1°080't€
T6E°99Y'0T  €2v'6/8°9T
CTE'SOT'T 661'€8S‘E
6'LT6'T 0€0'62T 'V
8Y.°96€L 1€6°L8Y6
0Z/610¢ 6T/3T0¢

S994
sadesen
SPIOA
suoneldepy
SHOM AUT vy
(s340m 12911p) Aduadunuon©
73410 %J

@©
ol

dwuweidoud SHIOM 193.1Q

S|euJa1xy
s|eusalu| J030BeJ3UOD
paJayays

S|euJa1X3

S|euJalu| 3SNOH u|

JNINVYOOYd TV1IdVI VHH



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64



HRA Business Plan

Appendix 2

CAERPHILLY
2018/19
Assumptions
Area Assumption Rate / Value Comment
Genersi General inflation rate 29 As per UK Governments current inflation

° and WG business planning guidance

Rental Income

Rent increases
2018/19

Rent increases beyond
2018/19

Voids provision

Bad debt provision
Expected Universal
Credit roll out date

3.60% This is the minimum increase to ensure

CBBC rent target level is met
3% CPI (at 2%) plus 1% as per current rent

policy

rising to 7% yr 2 & 3 to meet expectation
6% of high arrears due to UC rollout.
Currently voids & bad debt is 4.88%.

Included in above
September 2018

Staff cost increases

Maintenance cost

Due to historical low pay awards 2% is
2% deemed sufficient for the plan but this
increases to 2.5% from yr 5

Costs ) . 3% |To allow for material increases
inflation
WHQS cost inflation 3% To allow for material increases
Qon;truchon BoE 3% | To allow for material increases
inflation
External treasury management
Debt pools consultants have advised a one pool
Debt approach

CRI/MRP rates

CRI as per Treasury Management
modelling. MRP 2% on all debt

Planned Maintenance
(Post WHQS)

Planned Maintenance

Sheltered Remodelling

£14m

£2m|Indicative budget of £20m set for 5 years

post WHQS, based on affordability and

EiapiEnans current spend profile using actual average
Energy Efficiencies £2m

Contingency £1m BOSIE.

TOTAL £20m

Deviations to any of the above assumptions will impact on the affordability of the Business Plan resulting in a
change to the borrowing requirements which in turn will affect the borrowing capacity.

Page 65




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 66



Agenda Item 10

B
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
> 4

POLICY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
6TH SEPTEMBER 2018

SUBJECT: CAERPHILLY HOMES ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE
SERVICES

1.1 The attached report will be presented to the Caerphilly Homes Task Group on 4th September
2018.

1.2 The views expressed at the meeting and the recommendations of the Caerphilly Homes Task
Group will be reported verbally to the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee.

1.3 Members are asked to consider the contents of the report and make a recommendation to
Cabinet.

Author: R. Barrett, Committee Services Officer, Ext. 4245

Appendices:
Appendix Report to Caerphilly Homes Task Group on 4th September 2018 - Agenda Item 7

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 68



‘ APPENDIX
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWIRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
>

CAERPHILLY HOMES TASK GROUP - 4TH SEPTEMBER 2018

SUBJECT: CAERPHILLY HOMES ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR SOCIAL SERVICES AND HOUSING

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To outline the proposed asset management strategy for Caerphilly Homes housing stock,
following the anticipated achievement of the Welsh Housing Quality Standard in 2020, prior to
its consideration by the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee and thereafter Cabinet. To
ensure the standard is maintained thereafter and the Council’s housing portfolio continues to
provide affordable, quality homes that meet customers’ needs.

1.2 The proposed strategy applies to all Caerphilly Homes housing stock which is funded by the
Housing Revenue Account, as well as new council housing which may be acquired in the
future.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 Following a ballot of all council tenants in 2012, which resulted in CCBC retaining its housing
stock, Caerphilly Homes embarked on a major investment programme to bring all its social
housing up to the WHQS by 2020.

2.2 As we are now nearing the end of this programme, this report sets out a proposed strategy
which is required to determine how the standard will continue to be maintained post 2020 and
how Caerphilly Homes will continue to provide existing and new homes which contribute
towards meeting demand and the specific needs of our tenants for the future.

2.3  The strategy can be further developed to include other housing related assets including
shops, garages and land, to ensure they remain fit for purpose, meet changing demands and
that their value/benefit is maximised.

3. LINKS TO STRATEGY

3.1 The delivery of the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) programme is coterminous with
the aims of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 which requires public
bodies to work towards a shared vision comprising 7 goals and adopt 5 “Ways of Working”.
The 7 goals and the 5 Ways of Working will underpin the delivery of the programme and
include planning and acting for the long term, integration, involvement, collaboration and
prevention.

3.2 The Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) is intended to ensure that all local authority and
housing association homes are improved and maintained to achieve specified standards. Itis
a Welsh Government requirement that the WHQS is achieved by 2020. The WHQS identifies
7 specific aims (Welsh Assembly) Government — Revised Guidance for Social Landlords —

July 2008). Page 69



3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

The Council’s Corporate Plan 2018 — 2023 and more specifically Wellbeing Objective 3,
address the supply, condition and sustainability of homes throughout the county borough and
provide advice, assistance or support to help improve people’s health and wellbeing.

THE REPORT

The long term vision for housing in Wales was set out by the National Assembly for Wales in
the National Housing Strategy “Better Homes for People in Wales 2001” which states that:-

“all households in Wales are given the opportunity to live in good quality homes.”

To help realise this aim, they published the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS), which
requires all social landlords to improve their housing stock to meet this standard by 2020.

Following a ballot of all council tenants in February 2012, there was a clear vote in favour of
the housing stock being retained by the Council.

A major investment programme commenced with the aim of not only improving the existing
housing to meet the WHQS, but also to maximise the socio-economic benefits associated with
delivering a multi-million pound improvement programme.

As we are now entering the final two years of the programme, the following strategy is being
proposed to ensure that the standard, once met, will continue to be maintained, and that
existing and new homes will be provided to contribute towards meeting demand and the
specific needs of our tenants for the future.

Proposed Strategy

This strategy sets out proposals following the achievement of WHQS by 2020, to ensure the
standard is maintained thereafter and the Council’s housing portfolio continues to provide
affordable, quality homes that meet our customers’ needs.

The strategy applies to the asset management of all existing and future council housing which
is supported by the Housing Revenue Account.

To deliver this strategy the following key issues have been identified:-

a) Asset Management - To assist with the delivery of the WHQS programme a new asset
management database was acquired called Keystone. This system helps to manage
the maintenance and improvement of our housing stock by maintaining a record of our
portfolio, identifying the investment required for each property and the financial
commitments required to achieve the standard, i.e. WHQS and to support the ongoing
maintenance of the standard post 2020.

b)  Delivery Plan — whilst the asset management database can provide information at an
individual property level, a delivery plan needs to be agreed to ensure that any future
planned maintenance programmes are provided as economically and efficiently as
possible. The provision of new Council housing also needs to be considered and
included within a delivery plan.

C) Procurement — the existing procurement strategy needs to be reviewed to ensure the
approach taken not only supports the delivery plan as effectively and efficiently as
possible, but also ensures value for money and maximises community benefits from the
investment.

d) Standards/Quality — understanding our asset portfolio and our customers’ needs is key
to the successful delivery of this strategy. Maintaining existing properties to the WHQS
Bageg)fo



4.9

4.10

411

is one aspect, but there will be other legal and regulatory standards to comply with. In
addition innovation and sustainability will be required to ensure existing and new
housing remains affordable and meets our customers’ needs. The tenants’ Charter for
Trust will continue to be supported and reviewed to ensure satisfactory levels of service
are being delivered to our tenants.

e) Viability — the agreed strategy will need to be supported by a financially viable business

plan that clearly sets out our income/borrowing requirements to meet the identified
investment contained within the delivery plan.

Caerphilly Homes Asset Management Strategy

Housing (HRA)

Business Plan

Delivery Plan

Statutory
Landlord
Maintenance

Asset
Management Procurement
Strategy Plan

Reactive
and
Void Repairs

Standards/

5 year Asset Quality
Maintenance
Programme

Background

The proposed strategy assumes the successful achievement of WHQS by 2020, accepting,
however, that there will be a number of properties that have not met the standard fully and
have been classed as “acceptable fails” and a number of other properties which were not
made fully compliant due to no access or refusals.

The WHQS is aimed at improving homes, but also meeting tenants’ specific needs. As such
Caerphilly’s tenants were provided with a number of choices and the works were not
mandatory, unless there were specific health and safety issues which needed to be
addressed.

In this regard, where tenants have failed to provide access or refused to have certain
elements of work undertaken to their home, their property was removed from the programme.
As tenant/property circumstances are likely to change on an ad-hoc basis, these individual
properties will need to be improved to the standard as and when required, e.g. when the

property becomes void.
Page 71



4.12

4.13

4.14

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

There were also 6 sheltered housing schemes undergoing feasibility studies to establish if
they lend themselves to remodelling to make them fit for purpose. Subject to the outcome of
these studies, improvement works may not be progressed until post 2020.

For the remainder of the housing stock which meets the WHQ Standard, these need to be
maintained in a planned way to ensure the standard is maintained.

Due to housing demand (current 5,000 applicants on the housing register) there is also a
requirement to deliver accessible housing for those with specific needs as well as increasing
the supply of council housing.

ASSET MANAGEMENT

Understanding our asset portfolio and the investment required in order to meet Caerphilly
Homes’ strategic aims, as well as complying with all legal and statutory standards, is key for
the successful management of our stock data and investment needs.

Our Keystone Asset Management system will facilitate the management of our housing stock,
by identifying key component replacement needs based on life cycle estimates. This
information will be used to inform our delivery plan, ensuring our assets are maintained at
optimum levels by actively and efficiently managing our assets that will be used to inform the
housing business plan.

In addition, statutory landlord maintenance responsibilities and reactive repairs service will be
managed by our Total Mobile Dynamic System. This is an operational system to record and
issue reactive repairs and statutory maintenance work using dynamic scheduling technology.

Both systems will need to be kept up to date with any completed work being inputted in an
accurate and timely manner, so that information on properties and individual key components
is amended to reflect any changes, e.g. life cycle estimates. It is also critical that the systems
work in an integrated way to ensure information is shared to support the delivery of an efficient
and effective asset maintenance service.

DELIVERY PLAN
The asset management delivery plan can be broken down into the following functions:-
Statutory Landlord Maintenance

There is an ongoing requirement to undertake regular safety checks and maintenance works
to ensure our statutory responsibilities are complied with in relation to gas/solid fuel servicing,
periodic electrical testing, fire safety check, asbestos, lifts, hoists and water hygiene.

This work will be managed by our Housing Repair Operations (HRO) team utilising the in-
house workforce and the services of external specialist contractors where required.

Compliance and performance in relation to statutory maintenance is overseen and monitored
corporately via regular Statutory Maintenance Board meetings, and also by the corporate
“Ramis” system.

Reactive Repairs

Caerphilly Homes carries out approximately 30,000 repairs per annum which are usually
reported by tenants or individuals acting on their behalf. The repair service may result in a
component being renewed and this will be undertaken to ensure the WHQS standard is
maintained.

Page 72



6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

Where a component may have not been renewed as part of the WHQS programme e.g.
tenant refusal, but subsequently fails, then it will be replaced and brought up to the WHQS
standard by the HRO team.

Void Properties

As mentioned previously, although the WHQS programme is anticipated to be completed in
2020, a number of properties would not have been brought up to the required standard for a
number of reasons, e.g. no access, refusals, timing or cost of the remedy.

When a property becomes void it will be assessed by our surveyor to establish if it is fully
WHQS compliant. Any elements failing to meet the standard will be identified and the
required work undertaken during the void period.

In addition, the accessibility of a property will also be considered and where practical and
economically viable, work will be carried out to improve access in order to meet the increasing
demands for such properties.

A certificate will be issued to the new tenant at the time of allocation to provide details of the
energy performance of the property and compliance with WHQS.

Asset Maintenance Programme

In order for the housing stock to be maintained to the WHQ Standard an asset maintenance
programme needs to be put in place from 2020. The Keystone asset management database
will be used to inform any planned programme by providing information on the life cycle of all
key internal and external components, based on completion of the main WHQS programme.

In preparation, a validation exercise is currently being undertaken to ensure that each key
component within the property has been provided with an estimated date for its replacement,
improvement based on guidance issued with the WHQS, manufacturers’ advice and physical
assessment by our in-house surveyors.

The asset maintenance programme for external works is to be arranged based upon a 5 year
repair or replacement cycle. Properties completed in relation to external works during
2015/16, or earlier, will therefore be included in the planned programme for 2020/21;
properties completed in 2016/17 will be planned for 2021/22, etc.

The specification of works for each property will be based on timely physical surveys, to take
account of changing conditions. However, the surveyors will be assisted with information from
our Keystone asset management system, which will identify projected component life cycle
replacements based on previous surveys/works. This information will also assist with financial
forecasting and inform the housing business plan.

Surveys for the main WHQS programme will reduce from December 2018, which will release
surveyors who can then be utilised to undertake asset maintenance surveys to those
properties identified for such works in 2020/21. This will enable packages of work to be
collated and competitive tenders invited during 2019, utilising our existing Dynamic
Purchasing System, based on the specification of work, identified by our surveyors for each
property. This will include external redecoration.

In relation to internal works, although the main WHQS internal works programme did not
commence until 2014, some properties benefitted from such works in advance of this, i.e.
2010.

The shortest lifespan for the internal elements is kitchens which are anticipated to remain in
good condition for 15 years. Based on WG guidance, bathrooms should remain in a
satisfactory condition for 25 years, electrical wiring and heating systems 30 years. Therefore

Page 73



6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

6.26

6.26

6.27

a planned maintenance programme for internal works is not required to commence until 2025,
i.e. 2010 plus 15 years.

There will, however, be some exceptions in relation to electrical wiring where a number of
properties/streets may have only benefitted from partial rewires. Safety checks will be carried
out to these properties every 5 years in compliance with electrical regulations and a separate
programme of rewiring will be initiated where required.

Although heating systems are estimated to remain satisfactory for up to 30 years, it is
recognised that boilers may fail between 7 to 15 years. Rather than implementing a planned
approach to the replacement of boilers, it is considered to be more economical to replace
such appliances as and when they fail or become uneconomical to repair. Annual servicing of
heating systems will assist in making an informed decision on boiler replacements.

Surveys will be required to commence in 2023/24 to determine the extent of works required in
each property based on the condition of each key component. A property schedule will be
provided by Keystone based on the contract completion dates which were populated when a
property/street was originally upgraded/improved.

The method/extent of internal works would be determined based on the condition of individual
components of each property. It is not the intention to replace all key components based
purely on age, as condition will be the overriding factor.

In addition to the above any external or internal element which becomes defective or
prematurely fails prior to its planned replacement date will be rectified via our response
maintenance service or tendered as a specific project. In addition, all components would be
assessed to ensure WHQS compliance when a property becomes void.

Subiject to a review of the procurement strategy, currently it is intended that packages of work
will be collated and competitive tenders obtained via the Dynamic Purchasing System during
2024 to enable works to commence in 2025. This process will continue for each year
thereafter based on the properties identified by Keystone which will continue to inform future
programmes of work.

Remodelling of Sheltered Housing Schemes

Following the outcome of surveys, combined with the lack of demand for a number of our
sheltered housing schemes, questions were raised as to whether six of our schemes were fit
for purpose. The majority of these schemes had access issues and contained bedsits.

A separate report will be submitted for Cabinet approval, detailing the outcome of the
feasibility studies and the full extent of work proposed.

Accessible Housing

As part of the WHQS programme work, in addition to achieving the standard, work was also
undertaken to meet the specific needs of the tenant which includes a variety of adaptations.
In order to achieve long term benefits from the adaptations, properties have been categorised
based on their level of accessibility.

Following the establishment of the Common Housing Register all attempts will be made to
allocate properties to suit the specific needs of potential tenants. The categorisation of
properties will therefore assist this process whereby our Occupational Therapist will assess
the physical/medical needs of applicants and use this information to match households to
suitable properties.

This process will make best use of adaptations already made, thereby reducing the need for
new adaptations and avoid the need to remove those that have previously been carried out.
This will also speed up the allocations process for those with specific needs.

Page 74



6.28

6.29

6.30

6.31

6.32

6.33

6.34

6.35

7.1

7.2

Energy Improvements (EWI)

In delivering the WHQS programme, property surveys have identified the requirement for
works to some of our properties to resolve dampness and in a number of cases this has led to
the removal of cavity wall insulation (CWI).

As part of the process in removing CWI, this has resulted in scarring to the existing external
render and the loss of insulation aimed at improving living conditions for our tenants.

A separate improvement programme is therefore proposed to be introduced from 2020 with
the aim of carrying out energy efficiency works, which would include the installation of external
wall insulation to those properties that have previously suffered from damp problems resulting
in the removal of cavity wall insulation.

To support the delivery of such a programme, officers would actively source alternative grant
funding which would be subsidised by funding from the HRA.

Other energy initiatives will also be pursued to maximise the energy efficiency of our housing
stock, thereby reducing carbon emissions and contributing towards addressing fuel poverty.
To assist with this, a contract has been awarded to undertake energy surveys to our housing
stock to obtain energy performance certificates and establish their overall energy rating. This
information will also support our requirement to provide such information to WG in line with
their rent policy.

New Council Housing

Both existing and new homes need to be provided to ensure that they meet current and future
demand, taking into account government reforms including rent policy, changes to the welfare
system, legislative changes, e.g. homelessness, energy efficiency and sustainability.

It is essential that our assets and therefore this asset management strategy, supports
Caerphilly Homes obijectives for growth and development, as well as supporting the wider
health prevention agenda, through the provision of ‘houses for life’ which embraces the
opportunities of digital technological advances. There are a number of ways this can be
achieved, including identifying opportunity assets by undertaking a review of land held in
housing ownership, e.g. garage sites, open spaces, to identify opportunities to deliver new
homes and regenerate towns and communities. This review is currently ongoing and will
inform the identification of opportunity assets which will form the basis of a separate report to
Cabinet.

Subject to maintaining a financially viable business plan, options for providing new council
housing is actively being considered. A separate report has been prepared for consideration
by Cabinet to establish support and the likely scale for the delivery of new council housing
which will be based on contributing to our Local Housing Market Assessment.

PROCUREMENT

The above delivery plan needs to be supported by an efficient and effective procurement
strategy, that has the capacity to deliver on all the work-streams, considers quality as well as
cost in providing value for money, promotes community benefits and supports the local
economy.

Whilst existing arrangements will continue to support the statutory landlord maintenance and
reactive repairs service for void properties, a review of the strategy is required to support the
proposed new work-streams of the asset maintenance programme, remodelling sheltered
schemes, energy improvements and new council housing.

Page 75



8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

STANDARDS/QUALITY

Whilst a number of specific standards for housing are prescribed by Welsh Government,
Building Regulations, Codes of Practice, statutory and health and safety regulations,
additional standards have been set locally.

As mentioned above, our procurement strategy will continue to include quality as part of our
evaluation criteria with the aim of contracting with reliable and reputable companies who
deliver good quality work and customer service.

The tenants’ Charter for Trust will be reviewed following experiences obtained through the
delivery of the WHQS improvement programme, to ensure this remains fit for purpose.

Customer satisfaction surveys will be conducted on a regular basis to obtain feedback from
our customers on the services they receive. The feedback will be analysed so we learn from
any positive or negative responses.

Performance monitoring will continue through the identification of key performance indicators
(KPls) for each work-stream. Performance outcomes will be reported to the Caerphilly Homes
Task Group and Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee at least on an annual basis.

Health and Safety performance will be monitored corporately by the Statutory Maintenance
Board on a quarterly basis.

TENANT INVOLVEMENT

Caerphilly Homes is committed to an open and transparent consultation process in the
delivery of its services, which includes maintaining and improving tenants’ homes.

An extensive consultation exercise was conducted prior to embarking on the delivery of the
WHQS programme which may result in over £220m being invested in the housing stock. In
order to ensure that the benefits of this investment continue to be realised for the future, it is
imperative that we have an agreed asset management strategy in place that ensures our
tenants’ homes are maintained to satisfactory standards, that homes remain affordable and
meet our existing and future tenants’ needs.

Tenants will continue to be at the heart of our overall approach to the delivery of high quality
housing services. In this respect wider consultation took place with our tenants prior to
finalising the proposed strategy and feedback from this has been incorporated into the report.

Following the successful approach adopted for the WHQS programme, it is proposed that
tenant involvement in the specification and procurement process, review of the Charter for
Trust and in overseeing the delivery of the Asset Management Strategy will continue, in
addition to the monitoring of performance and quality of services being delivered

VIABLITY

The asset management strategy will be aligned to the Housing Business Plan and approved
by Cabinet.

The proposed Delivery Plan must be fully funded and affordable within the Housing Business
Plan, which will include any borrowing requirements. Current projections and assumptions
incorporated into the plan indicate that this strategy is viable.

In this respect, the maintenance of valid and accurate asset data is essential to inform the

integrity of the Business Plan, future expenditure forecasting and remaining lifecycles of stock

condition elements and the reconciliation of pﬁoéect completions will be routinely carried out.
e



10.4

11.

111

12.

12.1

13.

13.1

13.2

Prior to committing to any new projects a full financial appraisal will be undertaken and where
required specific reports submitted for relevant approval.

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

The delivery of the WHQS improvement programme is coterminous with the aims of the
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) act 2015, in particular the 5 ways of working:-

e Long Term: the report includes continued investment and performance to achieve
WHQS by 2020. This investment provides long term improvements to the property,
community and to the tenants’ health and well being.

¢ Integration: The programme looks to integrate property and environmental
improvements that will benefit and transform lives and communities throughout the county
borough. It further brings together a variety of stakeholders to deliver long term
sustainable benefits for lives and communities.

¢ Involvement: Tenants and local residents are being consulted on the proposed property
improvements and environmental works along with various initiatives that are part of the
WHQS programme delivery.

e Collaboration: The programme delivery is focused on internal collaboration, wider
partnership arrangements with suppliers and contractors, joint working with the
community and various other groups. The delivery of community benefits and tenant
engagement by all involved with the WHQS programme is a key focus and is clearly
demonstrable within its delivery.

e Prevention: The works to improve lives and communities will help tackle local
unemployment. It will further improve the look and feel of the environment and help
prevent anti-social behaviour. Improving standards and quality, will aid future
programmed maintenance and potentially reduce reactive maintenance schedules.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

An EIA screening has been completed in accordance with the Council’s strategic Equality
Plan and supplementary guidance. No potential for unlawful discrimination and/or low level or
minor negative impact has been identified; therefore a full EIA has not been carried out.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The HRA borrowing cap is £180m which includes pre-existing historical debt and the debt for
the subsidy buy-out. The Business Plan currently allows for some £34m flexibility before the
borrowing cap is breached. Members must be advised, however, that the WHQS programme
is ongoing and circumstances can change as surveys and work on our existing stock is
carried out.

The maximum borrowing of £34m would be affordable by the HRA, but this is based on the
following assumptions which are outside the direct control of officers or members and
therefore they could be subject to change.

e MRA allocation from WG anticipated to continue at current levels, e.g. £7.3m.

o General inflation over the five years up to 2025 has been assumed as 2%. This is based
on the UK government’s current inflation, but could be subject to change due to the
economic climate, Brexit, legislation, etc.

Page 77



13.3

13.4

135

14.

14.1

e Rentincreases are projected at 3.60% for the 2018/19 financial year in order to comply

with WG rent policy, but this has then been reduced to 3% for each subsequent year. A
new rent policy is awaited from WG so at this time rent increases are difficult to predict,
although there has been a significant reduction in England.

e A provision for bad debt, including void rent loss, has also been incorporated into the

projections. 6% has been allowed for within 2018/19, but this has been increased to 7%
for the following years, to take into account the implementation of Universal Credit and
increased levels of financial hardship on our customers.

e Staff costs have been assumed to rise by 2% over the next 4 years but increased to 2.5%
from year 5.

¢ Maintenance and construction cost increases of 3% have been incorporated into the
business plan, which again is built on historical and current trends. Such increases are
subject to market conditions, legislation and Brexit, so are difficult to predict with any
certainty.

o A full review of forecast WHQS costs is currently being undertaken to compare with the
original costs in the business plan. The costs for delivering the WHQS programme to
2020 have been estimated using the most recent survey information. Where surveys have
not yet been carried out, average costs per element have been used based on historical
cost data. Obviously this changes on a daily basis once properties are surveyed and the
actual works are identified, which may or may not include full works on all internal and
external elements. There are also variations that arise within the contract duration. The
costs built into the plan therefore are likely to change throughout the remainder of the
programme, and this could impact on the level of borrowing capacity.

o A future asset management programme has been costed and budgeted for within the
plan, based on historic actual costs and projected future workload. This includes £14m
for our general asset maintenance programme, £2m for remodelling one of our sheltered
housing schemes each year, £1m per annum for carrying out works of adaptation to our
properties based on tenants’ specific needs, £2m to support energy efficiency initiatives
and provide match funding to possible WG grants and a £1m contingency budget for
unforeseen requirements. This equates to a total allocation of £20m p.a. for the delivery
of an asset management programme from 2020-25. Obviously the above projections are
also linked to the previous assumptions made, so could be subject to change.

The delivery of this strategy has been aligned with the Housing Business Plan and
demonstrates that the proposal is affordable within the HRA, with the exception of new build
proposals which will be considered separately.

A summary of the Business Plan up to 2025 is provided as Appendix 1 and the proposals
made within this strategy have been incorporated together with the assumptions summarised
above and as set out in Appendix 2.

Officers will continue to seek alternative funding to support energy efficiency schemes for the
Council’s housing stock, as this will supplement the current investment being utilised to bring
the stock up to the WHQS.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Continued close management and monitoring of performance of the programme is essential
to ensure that its delivery is not compromised in any way. There will be an increase in
workload for the in-house team due to the sheltered housing schemes commencing along with
the possibility of undertaking some of the work previously planned for Contract Services.
Additional resources may be required to ensure performance in achieving the objective is

Page 78



15.

15.1

15.2

16.

16.1

17.

17.1

18.

18.1

Author:

maintained and this has been incorporated into the business plan and will be considered in
further detail as the post 2020 work is developed in detail.

CONSULTATIONS

All officer responses from consultations have been incorporated in the report.

Consultation has also been undertaken with the Repairs and Improvements Working group
and the wider body of tenants through the use of social media, a newsletter, face to face
engagement at events and e-bulletins. Where possible all responses received by the time this

report has been finalised have been considered and taken into account, although further
responses may be received and if relevant a verbal update can be provided at the meeting.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members consider the following principles and provide comments prior to consideration by the
Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee and thereafter Cabinet:-

a) The establishment of a 5 year Asset Management Strategy as set out in this report.

b) Agreement to the proposed delivery plan as indicated in Item 6 of this report.

c¢) Members agree the assumptions which have been included in the Business Plan that
outlines the affordability envelope and have been set out in Appendix 1 and paragraph
12.2, whilst noting that these may be subject to change which may result in further reports
being submitted.

d) Separate detailed reports to be submitted in relation to the remodelling of sheltered
housing schemes and new Council housing.

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

To consider a new asset management strategy to define Caerphilly Homes’ approach to

maintaining and improving the Council’s housing stock and providing new housing to meet

demand.

STATUTORY POWER

Housing Acts 1985, 1996, 2004, Local Government Measures 2009 and the Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

Shaun Couzens, Chief Housing Officer
Email: couzes@caerphilly.gov.uk Tel: 01443 866494

Consultees: Clir L Phipps - Cabinet Member for Homes and Places

Clir B Jones - Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance,
Performance and Governance

Christina Harrhy - Interim Chief Executive

Dave Street - Corporate Director of Social Services & Housing

Steve Harris - Acting Head of Finance and S.151 Officer

Jane Roberts-Waite - Strategic Co-ordination Manager

Page 79


mailto:couzes@caerphilly.gov.uk

Background Papers:

Appendices:

Fiona Wilkins - Public Sector Housing Manager

Lesley Allen - Group Accountant

Rhys Lewis - Performance and Systems Manager
Lisa Lane - Interim Monitoring Officer

Ros Roberts - Performance Manager

lan Raymond - Performance Management Officer

Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS)
The Council’s Local Housing Strategy

Appendix 1 — Business Plan Summary
Appendix 2 — Business Plan Proposals/Assumptions

Page 80



STyt
YT €20T
£€Cceoe
¢C'1eoc
12°020C
0T'610C
61°810C

Jea g

— NN <t n O~

Ied X

61/810T NV'1d SSANISNI HONISNOH
[Puno) ysnouog Ljuno) Aqpydase))

000°0C €69°C1 0 LYE'L 0 0 000°0¢ 0 0 0000 0

000°02 £€59°CI 0 LYE'L 0 0 000°0¢ 0 0 000°0C 0

000°0T €69°C1 0 LYE'L 0 0 000°0¢ 0 0 000°0C 0

000°0¢ £S9°CI 0 LYE'L 0 0 000°0¢ 0 0 0000C 0

000°0¢ €59°CI1 0 LYEL 0 0 000°0C 0 0 000°0C 0

CL6'9Y L9l 0 LYEL 0 €06°CC CLO9Y 0 0 L6y 0

108°6¢ €L8°9C 0 LYE'L 188 00L°02 108°G¢S 0 0 108°SS 0
000°3F 000°3F 000'F 000°F 0003 000°F 000" 000°F 000°F 000°F 000°%F

3uoueur]y  ODOY unoddYy PPO  s1deoay  Summoniog amipuadxyg  19y10 sjuow wrely  saredoy
e sairedoy a1y [e10] oroxdwy pauuerg dnyoe)

[ Suueury J [ samyrpuadxy |

sunueuly syudwasoadw pue sareday Jolep
| Xipuaddy

Page 81



%V
%CT
%1T

%61

%0¢€

%6¢€

%LE
% f1oede)

Buimoutiog

'SOHM 133w 01 pa1inbas buimo.ioq fo [9A3] 3y} pup ubjd Ssauisng ay3 uj suoidwnsso ay) uo uapuadap si A1rodod buimo.iog

v9v'L0L Ty
8LT'V06°6€
S88'ev0’LE
9T1'STTVE
LTTVISYS
LTELLEOL
98799029

Koeden

Buimouiog

L609S€°LET
€8T'6STOVT
9/9'6TO'EVT
SYv'8€6°SPT
vEV'6rS'seT
v€2'989'60T
SLO'L66°CTT

40

V¥YH Buiso|p

981°€08°C
76€°098°C
69L°816°C
686°0TS‘C
008'9€8'v
Tr8°0TE e
I8V PIS‘E -
sjuswieday
194310
pue dyiN

0000062t
000°00£°0t

Buimouilog
M3N

€87'6STOVT
9L9°6T0'EVT
SYY'8€6'SYT
rev'6vS'STT
¥€2'989'60T
SL0°L66°CTT
995 TIS9TT

¥40

VYH Buluado

€7/720T
ce/1eoe
12/020¢
02/610¢
6T/810C
8T/LT0T
L1/9T0C

N N < N

T
1sedalo4

psupny

Page 82

| 195°€90°081L 3

:f10eden mEBotoE

6L/8L02
ATIIHdY3IVD

QENEEN\Q ssauisng v&H



LL0'TL6'9Y  2S6°008°SS
6€9'88S°0T  €£0°950CT
000°00S°C SS0'8YL‘T
000°00S 000°00S
000°000°T 000°000°'T
000008 000008
000°009°‘€ 000°009°€
6€9'881°C 8T0‘80%‘E
8EV'E8E9E  6/8VYLEY
vv0'L6v'YT 9697996
¥6€988'TT  €8T1°080't€
T6E°99Y'0T  €2v'6/8°9T
CTE'SOT'T 661'€8S‘E
6'LT6'T 0€0'62T 'V
8Y.°96€L 1€6°L8Y6
0Z/610¢ 6T/3T0¢

S994
sadesen
SPIOA
suoneldepy
SHOM AUT vy
(s340m 12911p) Aduagunuoy 0O
73410 %J

@©
ol

dwuweidoud SHIOM 193.1Q

S|euJa1xy
s|eusalu| J030BeJ3UOD
paJayays

S|euJa1X3

S|euJalu| 3SNOH u|

JNINVYOOYd TV1IdVI VHH



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 84



HRA Business Plan

Appendix 2

CAERPHILLY
2018/19
Assumptions
Area Assumption Rate / Value Comment
Genersi General inflation rate 29 As per UK Governments current inflation

° and WG business planning guidance

Rental Income

Rent increases
2018/19

Rent increases beyond
2018/19

Voids provision

Bad debt provision
Expected Universal
Credit roll out date

3.60% This is the minimum increase to ensure

CBBC rent target level is met
3% CPI (at 2%) plus 1% as per current rent

policy

rising to 7% yr 2 & 3 to meet expectation
6% of high arrears due to UC rollout.
Currently voids & bad debt is 4.88%.

Included in above
September 2018

Staff cost increases

Maintenance cost

Due to historical low pay awards 2% is
2% deemed sufficient for the plan but this
increases to 2.5% from yr 5

Costs ) . 3% |To allow for material increases
inflation
WHQS cost inflation 3% To allow for material increases
Qon;truchon BoE 3% | To allow for material increases
inflation
External treasury management
Debt pools consultants have advised a one pool
Debt approach

CRI/MRP rates

CRI as per Treasury Management
modelling. MRP 2% on all debt

Planned Maintenance
(Post WHQS)

Planned Maintenance

Sheltered Remodelling

£14m

£2m|Indicative budget of £20m set for 5 years

post WHQS, based on affordability and

EiapiEnans current spend profile using actual average
Energy Efficiencies £2m

Contingency £1m BOSIE.

TOTAL £20m

Deviations to any of the above assumptions will impact on the affordability of the Business Plan resulting in a
change to the borrowing requirements which in turn will affect the borrowing capacity.

Page 85




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 86



Agenda Item 11

B
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
>

POLICY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
6TH SEPTEMBER 2018

SUBJECT: ELECTRIC VEHICLE STRATEGY AND ACTION PLAN

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR — EDUCATION & CORPORATE SERVICES

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To present to the Committee the draft Electric Vehicle Strategy and Action Plan attached at
Appendices 1 and 2 and seek any recommendations prior to presentation to Cabinet.

2. SUMMARY

2.1  Caerphilly County Borough Council’s first Electric Vehicle Strategy and Action Plan sets out
the proposed approach to supporting the installation of electric vehicle infrastructure to
maximise the economic, social and environmental benefits and opportunities that electric
vehicles provide, and for electric vehicles to be a fundamental part of the Council’'s own fleet.
The Committee’s views are sought prior to presentation to Cabinet.

3. LINKS TO STRATEGY

3.1 Green and renewable energy contributes to several of the Well-being goals within the Well-
being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015, including:

A prosperous Wales

A resilient Wales

A healthier Wales

A more equal Wales

A Wales of cohesive communities

A globally responsible Wales

Green and renewable energy also supports the Protect and enhance the local natural
environment action area and the Asset management enabler identified within the Caerphilly
Public Services Board Well-being Plan 2018-2023, supporting the Positive Change, Positive
People and Positive Places objectives.

The work also supports the following Corporate Well-being Objectives, identified within the
Council’s Corporate Plan 2018-2023:

e Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable transport system that increases
opportunity, promotes prosperity and minimises the adverse impacts on the
environment

e Creating a county borough that supports a healthy lifestyle in accordance with the
Sustainable Development Principle within the Well-being of Future Generations
(Wales) Act 2015

Page 87



4.1

4.2

4.2.2

4.2.3

42.4

4.2.5

4.2.6

4.2.7

THE REPORT

The draft Electric Vehicle Strategy and Action Plan presents an innovative and strategic
approach for electric vehicles across the county borough.

The UK Government recently announced its plans to ban new diesel and petrol vehicles from
sale in the UK from 2040. Vehicle manufactures are working to advance technology in electric
vehicles along with other alternative fuel vehicles and to build consumer interest.

Electric vehicles have been in use for many years, however it is only in recent years that they
have become accessible to the everyday motorist. Advances in battery technology in
particular have allowed electric vehicles to have ranges in excess of 180 miles on a full
battery charge. All the major car manufactures are investing in electric or hybrid vehicles with
many new electric vehicles coming to the market this year.

Electric vehicles is a growing market, albeit slowly. The number of new electric and hybrid
vehicle registrations in Wales rose by 35% in 2017, with 82 electric vehicle registrations in the
Caerphilly County Borough. There are currently no publicly available electric vehicle charge
points in the Caerphilly county borough and only 439 charge points across Wales.

Therefore a strategy to support the implementation of electric vehicles and electric vehicle
charge points is required to progress this important work. This will put into place the
infrastructure to support our staff and residents to invest in electric vehicles and encourage
visitors who drive electric vehicles to visit the county borough.

The strategy also includes the promotion and installation of infrastructure to support electric
bikes (E-bikes), electric mopeds and other electric vehicles that contribute to the overall aims
of the strategy.

The aims of the CCBC Electric Vehicle strategy are to:

e Provide electric vehicle infrastructure across the Caerphilly county borough

e Lead by example incorporating electric vehicles into our fleet and trial new technologies as
they evolve

¢ Work with private developers to incorporate electric vehicle infrastructure into new builds
and developments

o Work with our partners and local businesses to encourage them to adopt a similar
approach to electric vehicles and their infrastructure

The key objectives of the CCBC Electric Vehicle Strategy and Action Plan are to:
e Support an integrated network of EV charge points

¢ Undertake a feasibility study for electric vehicle charge point infrastructure, working with
Gwent local authorities and PSB partners

o Trial new technologies as they evolve to ensure that charging infrastructure keeps pace
with vehicle technology and the needs of residents and businesses

o Maximise the benefits of Welsh Government and other funding opportunities

e Encourage private developers and landowners to provide EV charging points to facilitate
the public to switch to low carbon vehicles

e Encourage private sector organisations to deliver electric vehicle charging points

¢ Raise awareness of the electric vehicle market so people can understand the options for
and benefits of EV ownership, including electric cars, mopeds and E-bikes

¢ Increase deployment of electric vehicles within the Council’s own fleet to reduce the
Council’'s own carbon emissions whilst carrying out its business

e Encourage and support our employees to switch to low carbon vehicles (full battery or
hybrid)

e Address air quality issues that have, or will arise, due to transport related issues

Page 88



4.2.8

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

7.1

8.1

¢ Inform and complement the County Borough Council’s wider policies on transport
contained in the Local Transport Plan

e Take a coordinated approach across the council for the electric vehicle agenda

o Work with PSB partners on joint actions to share good practice and maximise assets

The strategy presents the Council’s first Electric Vehicle Action Plan which is designed to
develop an innovative and strategic approach for electric vehicles across the county borough.
This will develop the infrastructure for, and encourage uptake of, electric vehicles in Caerphilly
county borough. This will ensure not only that the council is up to date with developments but
also that we are maximising the benefits and opportunities for electric vehicles.

WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

Renewable energy initiatives contribute to the Well-being Goals as set out in Links to Strategy
above and contribute to a number of the Council’s objectives. In particular they contribute to a
Globally Responsible Wales reducing the activities that promote climate change and noting
that climate change itself has been identified as a risk within the Corporate Risk Register.
Similarly they support a resilient Wales and offer a long term source of energy when other
non-renewable sources have become depleted.

Renewable energy schemes reduce or remove pollution from diesel and petrol vehicles and
emissions to air arising from carbon based energy sources, therefore promoting a Healthier
Wales. They can also support a Prosperous Wales by reducing the financial cost of energy
and longer term offer opportunities for employment through the growth of the renewable
energy sector within the county borough.

Renewable energy schemes are consistent with the five ways of working as defined within the
sustainable development principle in the Act in that they are a long term measure capable of
providing energy that will sustain into future generations. The projects under consideration will
support the development of an infrastructure which will prevent the on-going reliance on
carbon based fuels in the future. They also provide opportunities to involve our communities in
the development and use of renewable energy, and to collaborate with schools and other
sectors.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

No Equalities Impact Assessment has been done on this report, however Sustainable
Development and Equalities interact on many levels and work done in one area often
supports the other. Creating sustainable communities, employment and transport for example,
is of benefit to all the residents of Caerphilly county borough, regardless of their individual
circumstances or backgrounds.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The implementation of the Electric Vehicle Strategy and Action Plan will require investment in
infrastructure. A separate report identifying funding options, including the grant support
available is being prepared. There are potential cost savings to Services using electric
vehicles rather than petrol or diesel engine vehicles.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

There are no personnel implications arising directly from this report.

Page 89



9. CONSULTATIONS

9.1 This report has been sent to the Consultees listed below and all comments received are
reflected in this report.

10. RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1 That Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee consider the draft CCBC Electric Vehicle
Strategy and Action Plan at Appendices 1 and 2 and offer any recommendations prior to
presentation to Cabinet.

11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

11.1 To develop further the Council’s commitment to electric vehicles and electric vehicle charge
points.

12. STATUTORY POWER

12.1 None.
Author: Tracy Evans, Policy Officer
Consultees: Clir D Poole, Leader of the Council
Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director, Education & Corporate Services
Mark S Williams, Interim Corporate Director Communities
ClIr N. George, Cabinet Member for Neighbourhood Services
ClIr S. Morgan, Cabinet Member for Economy, Infrastructure, Sustainability &
Wellbeing of Future Generations Champion
Marcus Lloyd, Head of Infrastructure
Rhian Kyte, Head of Regeneration and Planning
Rob Hartshorn, Head of Policy and Public Protection
Mark Williams, Interim Head of Property
Nicole Scammell, Head of Corporate Finance
Kath Peters, Corporate Policy Manager
Paul Rossiter, Energy & Water Officer
Mary Powell, Fleet Manager
Paul Cooke, Senior Policy Officer
Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer (Equalities and Welsh Language)
Shaun Watkins, HR Manager
Appendices:

Appendix 1  CCBC Electric Vehicle Strategy
Appendix 2  CCBC Electric Vehicle Strategy Action Plan

Page 90



APPENDIX 1

Caerphilly County Borough Council Electric Vehicle Strategy
March 2018
Executive Summary

This strategy presents the Council’s first Electric Vehicle Action Plan which is
designed to develop an innovative and strategic approach for electric vehicles across
the county borough. This will develop the infrastructure for, and encourage uptake of,
electric vehicles in Caerphilly county borough. This will ensure not only that the
Council is up to date with developments but also that we are maximising the benefits
and opportunities for electric vehicles.

Caerphilly County Borough Council will show leadership through delivering this
Electric Vehicle Strategy to support our residents and staff to invest in electric
vehicles, by providing the required infrastructure, while also encouraging visitors who
drive electric vehicles to visit the county borough.

This strategy focuses on all types of electric and hybrid vehicles including cars, vans,
buses, mopeds and bikes.

The Key Aims of this strategy are to:

e Provide electric vehicle infrastructure across the Caerphilly County Borough.

e Lead by example incorporating electric vehicles into our fleet and trial new
technologies as they evolve.

e Work with private developers to incorporate electric vehicle infrastructure into
new builds and developments.

e Work with our partners and local businesses to encourage them to adopt a
similar approach to electric vehicles and their infrastructure.

The Key Objectives are to:

e Support an integrated network of EV charge points;

e Trial new technologies as they evolve to ensure that charging infrastructure
keeps pace with vehicle technology and the needs of residents and businesses;

e Maximise the benefits of Welsh Government funding opportunities;

e Encourage private developers and landowners to provide EV charging points to
facilitate the public to switch to low carbon vehicles;

e Encourage private sector organisations to deliver electric vehicle charging points;

¢ Raise awareness of the electric vehicle market so people can understand the
options for and benefits of EV ownership, including electric cars, mopeds and E-
bikes;

¢ Increase deployment of electric vehicles within the Council’s own fleet to reduce
the Council’s own carbon emissions whilst carrying out its business;

e Encourage our employees to switch to low carbon vehicles (full battery or hybrid);

Page 91



APPENDIX 1

e Address air quality issues that have, or will arise, due to transport related issues;

e Inform and complement the County Borough Council’s wider policies on transport
contained in the Local Transport Plan;

e Take a coordinated approach across the council for the electric vehicle agenda;

e Work with PSB partners on joint actions to share good practice and maximise
assets.

1. Introduction

The majority of vehicles on the streets of Caerphilly County Borough today run on
either petrol or diesel fuel. However, the situation is changing due to the advances in
new technology and the issues surrounding current technology. Petrol and diesel are
known to cause pollution which is dangerous to public health and contributes to
climate change.

For these reasons the UK Government recently announced its plans to ban new
diesel and petrol vehicles from sale in the UK from 2040. Due to this, vehicle
manufacturers are working to advance technology in electric vehicles along with
other alternative fuel vehicles and to build consumer interest.

Electric vehicles is a growing market, albeit slowly. The number of new electric and
hybrid vehicle registrations in Wales rose by 35% in 2017, compared to the previous
year. Wales is ahead of the UK average of 27% growth (figures from Go Ultra Low
Partnership). Recent figures released by the Department of Transport for the
Caerphilly County Borough indicate that in September 2016, there were 64 electric
vehicles registered. By September 2017 there were 82, which is an increase of 18
new electric vehicles or 28 %.

Although the figures are increasing, they represent a tiny fraction of total car use.
Overall there are about 2,500 plug-in vehicles in Wales and 439 charge points
across Wales. Looking at the bigger picture, there are 4,476 charge points across
the UK with 12,849 individual connectors, with electric vehicles representing 1.83%
of all UK traffic. There are currently no public electric vehicle charge points in
Caerphilly County Borough.

Therefore a strategy to support the implementation of electric vehicle charge points
in Caerphilly County borough, along with the provision of fleet electric vehicles is
required to progress this important work. This will put into place the infrastructure to
support our residents to invest in electric vehicles and encourage visitors who drive
electric vehicles to visit the county borough.

The profile of electric vehicles is now growing and is seen as a contributor to
reducing carbon emissions and improving air quality. Road transport is responsible

Page 92



APPENDIX 1

for over 90% of the UK’s domestic transport emissions. Although we cannot stop
people using their cars, we can encourage them to travel in low emission vehicles,
provided the infrastructure is in place to support this. This strategy also includes the
promotion and installation of infrastructure to support electric bikes (E-bikes), electric
mopeds and other electric vehicles that contribute to the overall aims of the strategy.

There are many benefits from electric vehicles. Compared to conventional cars they
emit substantially less carbon emissions. The vehicles are also cleaner with far less
exhaust emissions and deliver direct air quality improvements. However, electric
vehicles should be viewed as part of a solution with respect to overall transport
objectives, alongside promoting a modal shift to public transport, active travel,
walking and cycling, as they all support the wider sustainable transport and low
emission transport agenda.

We need to use the various levers available to us, such as: the planning process,
infrastructure opportunities on council owned property, diversifying our own fleet and
work with partners to lead by example on this area of work.

This strategy presents the Council’s first Electric Vehicle Action Plan which is
designed to develop an innovative and strategic approach for electric vehicles across
the county borough. This will develop the infrastructure for, and encourage uptake of,
electric vehicles in Caerphilly county borough. This will ensure not only that the
Council is up to date with developments but also that we are maximising the benefits
and opportunities for electric vehicles.

2. Vision:

Introduce an electric vehicle infrastructure across Caerphilly county borough, to
maximise the economic, social and environmental benefits and opportunities that the
electric vehicle agenda will provide.

Take a coordinated approach across the council to introduce electric vehicles as a
fundamental part of our fleet to reduce the council’s own carbon emissions whilst
carrying out its business.

3. Aims:
Our key aims are to:

e Provide electric vehicle infrastructure across the Caerphilly County Borough.

e Lead by example incorporating electric vehicles into our fleet and trial new
technologies as they evolve.

e Work with private developers to incorporate electric vehicle infrastructure into
new builds and developments.

Page 93



APPENDIX 1

e Work with our partners and local businesses to encourage them to adopt a
similar approach to electric vehicles and their infrastructure.

4. Objectives:

Caerphilly County Borough Council will show leadership through delivering this
Electric Vehicle Strategy to achieve the following to:

e Support an integrated network of EV charge points;

e Trial new technologies as they evolve to ensure that charging infrastructure
keeps pace with vehicle technology and the needs of residents and businesses;

e Maximise the benefits of Welsh Government funding opportunities;

e Encourage private developers and landowners to provide EV charging points to
facilitate the public to switch to low carbon vehicles;

e Encourage private sector organisations to deliver electric vehicle charging points;

e Raise awareness of the electric vehicle market so people can understand the
options for and benefits of EV ownership, including electric cars, mopeds and E-
bikes;

e Increase deployment of electric vehicles within the Council’s own fleet to reduce
the Council’s own carbon emissions whilst carrying out its business;

e Encourage our employees to switch to low carbon vehicles (full battery or hybrid);

e Address air quality issues that have, or will arise, due to transport related issues;

e Inform and complement the County Borough Council’s wider policies on transport
contained in the Local Transport Plan;

e Take a coordinated approach across the council for the electric vehicle agenda;

e Work with PSB partners on joint actions to share good practice and maximise
assets.

5. Policy Context:
5.1 National Policy

The UK Government recently announced its plans to ban new diesel and petrol
vehicles from sale in the UK from 2040. This supports the Air Quality Plan for
Nitrogen Dioxide in the UK published by the Department for Environment, Food &
Affairs and the Department for Transport.

The Queen’s Speech in June 2017 referred to the advance in electric vehicles as
part of the Automated and Electric Vehicles Bill. If this Bill is approved, this will
release an £800m fund for investment in new technology for zero emission and
driverless vehicle technology.

Page 94



APPENDIX 1

The UK Government announced a £255m fund in 2017 to help councils tackle
emissions, including the potential for charging zones for air polluting vehicles.

The UK Government published ‘Making the Connection: the Plugged in Vehicle
Infrastructure Strategy’ in 2011. At the time of this strategy, the Government
envisaged most electric vehicles being recharged overnight, at homes or in fleet
depots. This would have enabled the demand for electricity to be balanced across
day and night, increasing energy savings and the uptake of electric vehicles.

Range anxiety was one of the key barriers to the uptake of electric vehicles identified
in the strategy. The provision of charge point infrastructure across Wales would
remove this barrier and help to increase the uptake of electric vehicles across Wales
and in Caerphilly County Borough.

5.2 Regional Policy
Office for Low Emission Vehicles:

Making the Connection, the Plug-in Vehicle Infrastructure Strategy 2011 identifies
that low and ultra low emission vehicles are a vital part of the Government’s plans for
a modern transport system that promotes economic growth while delivering on its
climate change targets. The strategy sets out a vision for recharging infrastructure in
the UK and the steps that we, and other industry players, will need to take to make it
a reality in the years ahead. It identifies the need to shift to low emission vehicles to
reduce transport emissions and decarbonise road transport, with an emphasis on
plug-in electric vehicles.

Welsh Government:

Welsh Government has not produced a specific policy on electric vehicles as yet,
although their ‘Achieving our low Carbon Pathway to 2030’ is out for consultation
until October 4™ 2018, as part of their Decarbonisation Programme, which includes a
section on transport and makes reference to electric vehicles and to electric vehicle
charging networks. Welsh Government also have a £2 million fund available for
electric vehicle charging infrastructure, with a spend profile of £1million for 2018/19
and £1 million for 2019/20.

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015:

As part of the Well-being of Future Generations Act, public bodies will need to take
account of the issues around health, resource consumption, the environment and
biodiversity etc. on our future generations as well as the impacts of climate change
when developing their well-being objectives. Addressing the issues around health,
well-being, resource consumption along with the climate change impacts and

Page 95



APPENDIX 1

decarbonisation are crucial to achieving the objectives of the Act. By introducing a
greener energy infrastructure we would be contributing to achieving emission
reductions and improved air quality, as well as reducing unsustainable resource
consumption and helping to mitigate the impacts of climate change in Caerphilly
county borough and beyond.

Introducing electric vehicles into the county borough would meet several of the well
being goals including:

e A prosperous Wales — using our resources sustainably to support the local
economy and switching to alternative energy sources to help prevent rising
costs of decreasing fossil fuels.

e A resilient Wales — supporting a rich and healthy environment that enhances
biodiversity and helps us deal with decreasing fossil fuels. Embracing new
technologies and improved management of our asses will all contribute to a
resilient Wales.

e A healthier Wales — providing an environment that enhances health and well-
being with reduced pollution levels and improved air quality.

e A Wales of cohesive communities — providing opportunities for communities to
benefit from sustainable technology and environmentally friendly based
schemes.

e A globally Responsible Wales — reducing our carbon footprint and increasing
our use of renewable energy sources to reduce greenhouse gas emissions
and have a positive impact on our local environment, which will have a wider
impact both locally and globally..

The Environment (Wales) Act:

The Environment (Wales) Act puts in place the legislation needed to plan and
manage’ the natural resources of Wales in a more proactive, sustainable and joined
up way. Decarbonisation of the transport sector is essential if the Environment Act
(Wales) 2015 target to deliver 80% carbon reductions by 2050 is to be met and in
delivering on obligations set out in the Air Quality Standards (Wales) Regulations
2010.

The Air Quality Standards (Wales) Regulations 2010:

These regulations bring into the law in Wales the limits set out in European Union
Directives on Air Quality. The regulations require that Welsh Ministers divide Wales
into air quality zones.

Since the introduction of the Environment Act 1995 and the National Air Quality
Strategy (NAQS) all local councils have a duty to review and assess the local air

Page 96



APPENDIX 1

quality and, if necessary, take steps to improve air quality at any location where
national standards are not met. There are two air quality management areas in the
county borough causing exceedances of National Air Quality Objectives. These are
Caerphilly Town Centre and Hafodyrynys for nitrogen dioxide, the main source of
which is vehicle emissions.

5.3 Local Policy

Caerphilly PSB Local Well-being Plan:
The Local Well-being Plan highlights the four well-being objectives for the Caerphilly
Public Services Board, which are:

e Positive Change - A shared commitment to improving the way we work

together;

e Positive Start — Giving out future generations the best start in life;

e Positive People — Enabling our communities to be resilient and sustainable;

e Positive Places — Enabling our communities to be resilient and sustainable.

The Well-being Delivery Plan identifies four enablers and five action areas to ensure
we meet the four Well-being objectives, while taking into account the seven well-
being goals and the five ways of working. The objectives are integrated and so
coordinating our resources and activity will have the greatest effect on achieving
them.

Introducing electric vehicle charge points into Caerphilly county borough and electric
vehicles into the Council’s fleet would contribute to the resilient communities, health
and well-being and environment action areas and the asset management,
procurement and working together enablers. By working together collaboratively
across partner organisations, the actions will help to bring about long term
improvements in well-being for our residents.

Caerphilly County Borough Council 2017 Air Quality Progress Report:

This report identifies five different locations within the non-automatic tube data
across the local authority that exceeds the National Air Quality Objective for Nitrogen
Dioxide (NO,). Of the five exceedances identified, two locations are situated within
Caerphilly Town and 3 within Hafodyrynys Air Quality Management Areas.

There are a large number of proposed housing developments in Caerphilly that are
currently going through the planning process which will need to be assessed in terms
of their impact on local air quality. A Developers Guide is currently being drafted with
regard to air quality and what information should be considered when a planning
application is submitted and assessed. Introducing the requirement for electric
vehicle charging infrastructure into all new developments and across the county

Page 97



APPENDIX 1

borough could help reduce the impact of traffic emissions and pollutants of new
developments within the county borough.

The report also identifies a series of actions, which includes ‘investigating the
potential for the use of electric vehicles in the Council’s fleet to reduce vehicle
emissions’.

There are also actions in the report promoting active and sustainable travel, along
with improving walking and cycling routes, which supports the suggestion that
electric vehicles should be seen as part of a solution with respect to reducing
transport emissions. This links to the work the authority is undertaking on Active
Travel Routes, demonstrating a joined up approach.

A Foundation for Success, Regeneration Strategy 2018-2023:

The strategy concentrates on four strategic themes, namely, Supporting People,
Supporting Businesses, Supporting Quality of Life and Connecting People & Places.

A variety of actions detailed within the strategy support the introduction of electric
vehicles and charging infrastructure including the following:

e Improve access to affordable and variable transport;

e Explore and support energy efficiency initiatives and renewable energy
generation;

e Ensure that green energy infrastructure is an integral issue in the
development of all plans and strategies;

e Increase the use of electric vehicles and provide the necessary infrastructure
to support them.

Biodiversity Duty:

Caerphilly County Borough Council has a legal duty to maintain and enhance
biodiversity and in doing so promote the resilience of ecosystems under the
Environment (Wales) Act. The Caerphilly Biodiversity Plan highlights using the green
infrastructure approach as a means of delivering multiple benefits, by reducing
pollution and improving site management, to increase the resilience of our natural
environment.

CCBC Carbon Reduction Strategy:

Caerphilly’s Carbon Reduction Strategy aims to reduce carbon emissions by 45% on
07/08 emissions levels. There are four key themes established to achieve this,

Page 98



APPENDIX 1

Good Housekeeping, Invest To Save, Asset Management and Renewable
Technology. The strategy focuses on buildings and street lighting and the primary
objective is to reduce carbon emissions that are a direct result of Gas and Electricity
usage.

The authority has a legal requirement to display Display Energy Certificates (DEC)
which show how efficiently a building and its occupants is using energy. Itis
important not to add to a building’s energy consumption. With this in mind the
authority will try whenever possible to separate road emissions by installing
independent billing and metering supplies, and to not add to the buildings existing
electrical usage through electric vehicle charging. This will help prevent DEC ratings
increasing and follow the principles of the Carbon Reduction Strategy.

Local Authority Transport Plan (South East Wales Valleys Local Transport
Plan, January 2015):

The plan aims to target investment, support economic growth, reduce economic
inactivity, tackle poverty and encourage safer, healthier and sustainable travel. The
wider goals of the plan includes: to protect the environment, by minimising transport
emissions and consumption of resources and energy, by promoting walking, cycling,
quality public transport, modal shift and minimising demand on the transport system.

Unfortunately there is no mention of electric vehicles or electric vehicle infrastructure
in the plan, but this might be due to the technology of electric vehicles and charge
points during the development of the plan. With the advances in technology over the
past few years, electric vehicles should be included as a priority within the plan. The
plan does include actions on sustainable and active travel and makes reference to
environmental benefits.

S106 Obligations and the Community Infrastructure Levy:

Planning obligations, also known as Section 106 agreements are private agreements
made between local authorities and developers and can be attached to planning
permission to make a development proposal acceptable in planning terms that would
not otherwise be acceptable. They are focused on site specific mitigation of the
impact of development. S106 agreements are often referred to as 'developer
contributions' along with highway contributions and the Community Infrastructure

Levy.

Section 106 funding could be used to support the implementation of electric vehicle
charge point infrastructure in town centres and villages across the Caerphilly county
borough.

Page 99



APPENDIX 1

Future Generations Advisory Panel (FGAP):

The FGAP have received reports and regular updates on sustainable transport and
electric vehicles. The draft CCBC Electric Vehicle Strategy was endorsed by FGAP
at its meeting on the 8" March 2018.

6. Technology
6.1 Vehicles

The UK has seen a gradual increase in ultra-low emission vehicles, including electric
vehicles, with a 35% increase in Wales. Electric vehicles represent 1.83% of all UK
traffic, but with development in technology and the provision of charging
infrastructure this is expected to increase significantly in the future.

Electric vehicles are broken down into three types, Pure Electric Vehicles, Plug-in
Hybrid Vehicles (which includes extended range vehicles) and Hydrogen Fuel Cell
Vehicles

e Pure Electric Vehicles (EV) — rely solely on battery power. Electric cars can
travel between 100 and 250 miles on a single charge. There are a variety of
electric car types available from a most vehicle manufactures. In addition there
are E-Bikes, electric mopeds and other electric vehicles.

e Plug-in Hybrid Vehicles (PHEV) — have a conventional petrol or diesel engine
alongside an electric motor. They have a short range on electric power (up to 40
— 50 miles) but can extend their distances using the conventional engine. Again
there are a variety of vehicles available.

e Extended Range Plug-in Hybrid Vehicles (E-REV) — have a plug-in battery pack
and an electric motor, as well as a combustion engine. The electric motor always
drives the wheels, with the internal combustion engine acting as a generator to
recharge the battery when it is depleted. Range extenders can have a pure
electric range of up to 100 miles, although they are not as fuel efficient as the
EV's or PHEV’s

e Hydrogen Fuel Cell Electric Vehicles (FCEV) — are still at the development stage
with limited production due to the difficulties of hydrogen production, storage and
refuelling. These will not be included in the CCBC Electric Vehicle strategy, but
depending on developments, these could be a suitable alternative to larger
vehicles in the foreseeable future.

6.2 Charge points

There are currently three different types of charge points, with different power levels
associated to them. These are the slow 3Kw charge point, the fast 7Kw charge point
and the rapid 22Kw to 50Kw charge point.

10

Page 100



APPENDIX 1

e The 3Kw slow charge point can be either a standard household 3 pin plug on a
dedicated circuit or via a home charge point. A typical full charge will take
between 7 and 8 hours, although on newer vehicles with increased battery life,
this charge time could be doubled. It is usually used for overnight charging at
work or home due to the slow charge times. These are relatively inexpensive to
install and funding is available towards the cost of home charge points

e The 7Kw fast charge point requires a dedicated power source and connecting
cable. It usually takes between 3 to 4 hours to charge an electric vehicle to full
capacity. This type of charge point is becoming popular in many on-street or
public car park charge points, super markets and work places due to its relatively
quick charge time. These are relatively inexpensive to install depending on the
location and electricity supply.

e The 22Kw to 50Kw rapid charge points will charge a vehicle in around 30 to 50
minutes. These are usually seen on motorway service stations due to their fast
charge times as many users can benefit from them during the day. These are
very expensive to install and require a high power supply.

6.3 Challenges

The EV industry has made big technological advances in the past few years to
address issues such as range anxiety, battery power and charging times. There are
still some challenges and issues in moving the EV agenda forward. Some of these
include the ongoing development of charge points and their cost, the electrical grid
constraints and the costs to connect to the grid. The EV agenda is constantly moving
forward so it’s difficult to keep ahead of the game or know how the technology will
move forward or when it will halt.

7. Funding:
National Funding

The UK Government has made a commitment to support the development of Ultra
Low Emission Vehicles (ULEV’s) and announced its plans to ban new diesels and
petrol vehicles from sale in the UK from 2040. Government support for electric
vehicles exists in the form of the Plug-in Vehicle Grant towards the purchase of
vehicles, and the Electric Vehicle Home charge Scheme to assist with costs of
installation of a home charger.

Other grant schemes are available to local authorities. £4.5 million funding is
available until 31%' March 2020 through the OLEV On-Street Residential Chargepoint
Scheme and the Work Place Charging Scheme. The On-Street Residential
Chargepoint Scheme to increase the availability of plug-in vehicle charging

11

Page 101



APPENDIX 1

infrastructure for residents who do not have access to off street parking, and it can
also be used in public car parks (run by the local authority or other public body). The
Work Place Charging Scheme is a voucher based scheme that provides support of
up to £300 per unit towards the up-front costs of the purchase and installation of up
to 20 work place charge points.

Charge point companies can provide the 25% match funding for Local Authorities
applying for the OLEV funding. The procurement process would need to ask for the
business model to be included, to determine how this would work in regards to
income generation, ownership and maintenance of the charge points.

If there is plans for upgrading the street lighting, and the application included plans to
install charge points on street lighting then the budget used for the upgrade could
also be used towards the 25% match funding required.

Regional Funding:

Welsh Government announced a £2m fund for Electric Vehicle Charging
Infrastructure, with a spend profile of £1m for 2018/19 and £1m for 2019/20. Their
aim is to have a strategic approach throughout Wales and they are meeting with key
contacts from all 22 Welsh Local Authorities to ensure they achieve this approach.

8. Overview of current situation in Caerphilly County Borough

CCBC Electric Vehicle Trial project - Pool vehicle and Meals on Wheels service
vehicle

For an annual mileage of around 10,000 miles, switching from a conventional vehicle
to an electric vehicle would save around £800 in fuel costs alone. Based on this, an
electric vehicle trial project was approved by CMT in February 2017 to install slow
electric vehicle charge points and to lease three electric vehicles, one for the Meals
on Wheels Service, one for the Countryside Service and one to be used as a pool
vehicle. The vehicles would be leased on a 3 year basis allowing the authority to
take advantage of ongoing improvements to electric vehicle technology in a few
years time.

The pool vehicle will be available for individual employees to use as well as for
service areas to use to determine if they could deliver their service using an electric
vehicle.

Six slow charge units have been installed at Penallta House and five at Tir y Berth
Depot.

Fast charge units are also being installed to support the trial project and provide the
necessary infrastructure for future EV projects.

12

Page 102



APPENDIX 1

CCBC Electric Vehicle Strategy Group

An electric vehicle strategy group has been established by the Head of Policy &
Public Protection with representatives from Policy, Air Quality, Planning, Engineering
and Regeneration. This group will have the remit to oversee the Action Plan through
a co-ordinated approach to ensure that there are robust mechanisms and processes
in place to deliver the Action Plan.

Charging Infrastructure in the Caerphilly County Borough

There is insufficient provision for electric vehicle charge points in Caerphilly county
borough to support or encourage electric vehicle users. There are currently no public
charge points in Caerphilly County Borough for residents and/ or visitors to use. The
Zap Map (https://www.zap-map.com/) is used by electric vehicle users to identify
charge points accessible to them.

ZAP ) MAP v §

BTy g 5
aass] Nantyglo ' 4l
Ebbymiale [ Ad042] &
Pam@ Tredegar Blaenavon
s Blaina Llanover
Cefn-coed-y-cymmer Dowlais Rhymney
Merthyr Tydfil
etyclyd Cwmtillery
23060] A Pgemerlleni
Abertillery Talywain
Pentrebach New Tredegar Abersychan
srdare urhiy
@ firosdyibi Pontnewynydd
Pontypo
Aberbargoed
New Inn
wmaman B ed
= Mountain Ash g Oakdale
Sebastopol
Blackwood
wndale Treharris Newbridge
A4042]
= Cwmbran
d Abercynon Ystrad
Mynach =
Cwmcarn
Ponthir
andy Cilfynydd Crosskeys
Porth Risca Bettws gzn Cael eon
Llanbradach
Pontypri
-h Bedwas Machen Rogerstone
Tonyrefail Newport @
Caerphilly BiSenlsg
Llantwit Nantgarw ffryn
Fardre g m e
Gwaelod-y-garth @ [ Ada) ) Nash
Liantrisant Q2 Lisvane B G
Lianharan 3
Talbot Green Tongy is Pontprennau
St. Mellons
Pontyclun 1
Radyr. Peterstone
m @ 4 Llanedeym Wentlooge
Rumney

15}
St Fagans . &

Zap Map for the Caerphilly County Borough, showing charge points in the surrounding area, but
none in the Caerphilly County Borough.

13

Page 103


https://www.zap-map.com/

APPENDIX 1

Expected Demand

Recent figures released by the Department of Transport show that in September
2016, there were 64 electric vehicles registered in the Caerphilly County Borough.
By September 2017 there were 82, which is an increase of 18 new electric vehicles
or 28 percent.

It is difficult to project the expected growth of electric vehicles in Caerphilly County
Borough, but the growth could be increased by the provision of an electric vehicle
charging infrastructure. The critical factor supporting electric vehicle uptake is the
network size, speed and availability of suitable charge points. Too few options will
delay the growth of electric vehicle usage and ownership as well as discourage
visitors and potentially impact on local businesses. Although having too many charge
points could result in charging spaces left empty, which would have a negative
impact on other parking.

It is impossible to determine usage for electric vehicles at this stage at it will vary
according to each vehicles journey and owners lifestyle. As the uptake increases and
charge points are installed, and then their usage can be monitored for future
developments and expansion of the infrastructure, if and when required.

Challenges

There are also a number of challenges to be overcome in order to provide an electric
vehicle charging infrastructure:

e Controlled parking zones — would require Traffic Regulation Orders

e Location of charge points

e Power requirements — grid connections for charge points (access and cost)

e Payment by users

e Other utilities

e Change in technology — will the vehicles and/ or infrastructure become outdated
before the end of their lifetime?

e Number of charge points

e Potential for adding electricity usage onto the carbon footprints of buildings

e Projected growth/ demand

e CCBC Air Quality

Opportunities

There are also a number of opportunities for installation of electric vehicle charge
points, including:

e Council owned car parks
e Visitor centres

14

Page 104



APPENDIX 1

e Town centres

e Supermarkets

e New builds/ developments in the county borough

e Private developers — include in all plans and new developments

e Partnership working — private sector organisations/ local organisations

e Work with charge point installation companies to ensure they fund the 25% match
funding required for the OLEV funding

e Link funding applications to planned upgrades (street lighting and EV charge
points on street lighting), to maximise how you provide match funding

e Work with PSB partners to share assets (vehicles and charge points) to introduce
and expand the EV Charge point infrastructure and vehicle usage

Action Plan

This Electric Vehicle Strategy is accompanied by an Electric Vehicle Action Plan that
sets out the programme of actions that the Council intends to take to achieve the
aims and objectives of this strategy.

15

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 106



APPENDIX 2

Electric Vehicle Strategy Action Plan

This action plan has been developed to accompany the Electric Vehicle Strategy. It
sets out the programme of actions that the council intends to take to achieve the
aims and objectives detailed in the Electric Vehicle Strategy.

Action Plan

Objective 1: To support an integrated network of EV charge points

e Undertake a feasibility study using a suitably qualified consultant to identify
suitable locations and charging infrastructure across the county borough. The
proposed study would also look at the level of investment needed, and the
funding options available that could support the project, along with the
possible revenue to the council from the charging infrastructure.

e Provide a network of charge points for residents, businesses and visitors of
the county borough.

Objective 2: To trial new technologies as they evolve to ensure that charging
infrastructure keeps pace with vehicle technology and the needs of residents
and businesses

e Identify opportunities within the county borough for other new technologies,
working in partnership to pilot projects

e |dentify and explore opportunities for e-bike charging facilities at tourism sites,
to support active travel and electric vehicles

e |dentify and explore opportunities to link PVs and Green Electricity Generation
to the EV Infrastructure

Objective 3: To maximise the benefits of Welsh Government (and other)
funding opportunities

e Work with Welsh Government and other partners to secure WG funding to
install and expand EV charge point infrastructure across the county borough

e Explore opportunities to bid for OLEV Off Street Residential Charge Point
funding and Workplace charging funding to support the implementation of the
EV charge point infrastructure across the county borough

e Establish an Electric Vehicle Task & Finish Group to undertake the work
required to submit the funding applications

Objective 4: To encourage private developers and landowners to provide EV
charging points to facilitate the switch to low carbon vehicles

Page 107



APPENDIX 2

e As early as possible in the planning application process the council will seek
to encourage developers, wherever possible, to include the provision of EV
charging points in their developments

e Council will consider opportunities where appropriate to install EV charge
points at Council refurbishments and new development projects

Objective 5: To encourage private sector organisations to deliver electric
vehicle charging points

e Work with Planning to encourage private developers and land owners to
provide electric vehicle charging on their sites

e Encourage businesses, organisations and partners to provide electric vehicle
charge points

Objective 6: To raise awareness of the electric vehicle market so people can
understand the options for and benefits of EV ownership

e Raise awareness of the benefits of electric vehicles and the charging
infrastructure available

e Work with our PSB Partners to increase the electric vehicle charging
infrastructure and electric vehicle usage.

Objective 7: To increase deployment of electric vehicles within the Council’s
own fleet to reduce the Council’s own carbon emissions whilst carrying out its
business

e Work with fleet and internal services to trial electric vehicles for different
service areas

e Investigate pool vehicles (electric/ hybrid) as a cost saving exercise to reduce
mileage payments and to reduce our emissions from grey fleet.

Objective 8: To encourage our employees to switch to low carbon vehicle (full
battery or hybrid)

e Provide electric vehicle charging for staff to pay to use during the working day
e Raise awareness of the benefits of electric vehicles and the charging
infrastructure available

Objective 9: To address air quality issues that have, or will arise, due to
transport related issues

¢ Include areas with air quality issues in the feasibility study to identify the
suitability for electric vehicle charge point infrastructure

Objective 10: To inform and complement the County Council’s wider policies
on transport contained in the Local Transport Plan

Page 108



APPENDIX 2

e Link to the City Deal Metro work and Local Transport Plan

Objective 11: To take a coordinated approach across the council for the
electric vehicle agenda

e |dentify a defined set of criteria for EV charging for the EV charge point
infrastructure, taking into consideration parking charges at public car parks,
charging times and tariffs etc. and enforcement.

e Introduce EV’s as fleet vehicles and encourage staff to use them

e Provide EV charge points for staff to pay to use during the working day

e Establish an Electric Vehicle Task & Finish Group to o undertake the actions
detailed in the EV Strategy action plan.

Summary of Actions:

1. Undertake a feasibility study using a suitably qualified consultant to identify
suitable locations and charging infrastructure across the county borough. The
proposed study would also look at the level of investment needed, and the funding
options available that could support the project, along with the possible revenue to
the council from the charging infrastructure.

2. Provide a network of charge points for residents, businesses and visitors of the
county borough.

3. Identify and explore opportunities within the county borough for other new
technologies, working in partnership to pilot projects

4. |dentify and explore opportunities for e-bike charging facilities at tourism sites, to
support active travel and electric vehicles

5. Work with Welsh Government and other partners to secure WG funding to install
and expand EV charge point infrastructure across the county borough

6. Explore opportunities to bid for OLEV Off Street Residential Charge Point funding
and Workplace charging funding to support the implementation of the EV charge
point infrastructure across the county borough

7. Raise awareness of EV provisions with developers early in the planning
application process (or include it as a requirement for all new developments?)

8. Council will consider opportunities where appropriate to install EV charge points
at Council refurbishments and new development projects9. Work with planning to
encourage private developers and land owners to provide electric vehicle charging
on their sites

Page 109



APPENDIX 2

10. Encourage businesses, organisations and partners to provide electric vehicle
charge points

11. Raise awareness of the benefits of electric vehicles and the charging
infrastructure available

12. Work with our PSB Partners to increase the electric vehicle charging
infrastructure and electric vehicle usage.

13. Work with fleet and internal services to trial electric vehicles for different service
areas

14. Investigate pool vehicles (electric/ hybrid) as a cost saving exercise to reduce
mileage payments and to reduce our emissions from grey fleet.

15. Provide electric vehicle charging for staff to pay to use during the working day
16.Link to the City Deal Metro work and Local Transport Plan

17. Identify a defined set of criteria for EV charging for the EV charge point
infrastructure, taking into consideration parking charges at public car parks, charging
times and tariffs etc. and enforcement.

18. Identify and explore opportunities to link PV’s and Green Electricity Generation to
the EV Infrastructure

19. Establish an Electric Vehicle Task & Finish Group to undertake the work required
to submit the funding applications and to undertake the actions detailed in the EV
Strategy action plan.

Page 110



	Agenda
	3 Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee held on 29th May 2018.
	6 Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme.
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	8 Remodelling and Reclassification of Older Persons Accommodation.
	Appendix 1

	9 Proposals For Increasing Council Housing Supply.
	Appendix
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	10 Caerphilly Homes Asset Management Strategy.
	Appendix
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	11 Electric Vehicle Strategy and Action Plan.
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2


